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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1 (AIActAP-I)

i)

iv)

vii)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
Ftolerance of the Investor.

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’16 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value.

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation
plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l6 Aug'l6 Sep'l6 Oct'l6 Nov'i6 Dec'l6 Jan'l7 Feb'l7 Mar'l7 Apr'l7 May'l? Jun'l? FYID
AIACtAP-1 5.82% -045% 061% -215% 6.66% B876%  183% 061% 047% 271% 253% -0.96% 29.16%
Benchmark 483% -0.65% -03% -247% 5.69% 1164% 2.08% -018% -167% 275%  3.05% -0.26% 26.30%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -I is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active
asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on
the asset classes. The fund was matured on 22 Jun 2017 and generated an attractive return of 41.74%
since inception.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds 79% 0%
Money Market Funds 0% 100%
Income Funds 20% 0%
Others 0% 0%
Cash 0% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil
Total 100% 100%



viif) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 29.16%
Standard Deviation {12m trailing): 9.83%
Sharpe Ratio {12m trailing): 2.35
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
22-il 7‘,‘ ™ 30-Jun-16 Change 22-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
2,986,997 | 2,515,834 18.73 101.01 108.21 (6.65)
X) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of ATFPF-AIACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:

Debt Market Review - FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NENE
which is somewhat sticky in natare increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017,

Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the



MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and QOil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY 17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mn. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fucled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, aftractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.

xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particalars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees(000) | oo Rupees =mmmmmmmmmmmm
June 05, 2017 687,239 | 147,889 38.63 139.63 | 101.00
xii) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective

Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.



xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-I

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 629
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 337
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 50
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 39
500,000.0000 & Above 8

Total 1,063

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.



Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1I (AIActAP-II)

i)

ii)

i)

iv)

vi)

vil

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk
tolerance of the Investor,

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’16 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value,

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation
plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'lé Aug'l6 Sep'l6 Oct'l6 Nov'l6 Dec'l6 Jan'l7 Feb'1l7 Mar'l? Apr'l7 May'i7 Jun'l7 FTD
AIACtAP-1I 0.06 (0.00) 0.63% -209% 664% B874% 180% 0.62% 050%  2.68%  2.92% -7.00% 2173%

Benchmark 0.05 (0.01) -038% -244% 561% 1146% 2.05% -0.19% -1.65% 2.69%  2.98% -8.20% 15.82%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -II is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active
asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on
the asset classes. The fund generated an absolute return of 21.73% during the period under review
against the benchmark return of 15.82%.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds 78% 80%
Money Market Funds 0% 0%
Income Funds 20% 18%
Others 0% 0%
Cash 2% 2%
Leverage Nil Nil
Total 100% 100%
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viii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 21.73%
Standard Deviation {12m trailing): 11.40%
Sharpe Ratio {12m trailing): 1.39
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAYV per unit
30U | 30-Jun-16 | Change | 30-Jun17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change
Rupees (0600) % Rupees %
2,792,045 | 2,606,096 7.14 133.18 109.57 21.55
%) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of AIFPF-ATACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:

Debt Market Review - FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
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infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the
MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mm. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve frade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.

xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees (000) |  —eomecccc. R S Y —
June 30, 2017 - | 4,194 0.2 134.2193 | 134.0193
xii) Deseription and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective

Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.

12



xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-II

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 620
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 201
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 36
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 22
500,000.0000 & Above 7

Tetal 886

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-111 (AIActAP-IIT)

i)

ii)

i)

iv)

vii)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk
tolerance of the Investor,

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’16 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value,

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation
plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'16 Aug'l6 Sep'l6 Oct'l6 Nov'i6 Dec'l6 Jan'l7 Feb'17 Mar'l7 Apr'l7 May'l? Jun'it?  FYTD
AlActAP-1lI 581% -046% 066% -225% 6.59% 8.68% 1.84% 0.61% 0.485% L75% 284% -7.05% 21.41%

Benchmark 487%  -0.65% -0.39% -2.52%  5.65% 1147%  2.05% -0.18% -164%  270%  2.98% -B20%  15.90%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -III is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active
asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on
the asset classes. The fund generated an absolute return of 21.41% against the benchmark return of
15.90% during FY17.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds 80% 80%
Money Market Funds 20% 0%
Income Funds 0% 19%
Others 0% 0%
Cash 1% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil
Total 100% 100%
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viii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 21.41%
Standard Deviation {12m trailing): 11.43%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): 1.36
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

WNet Asset Value NAYV per unit
30;] ,;l = 30-Jun-16 Change 30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
1,733,389 | 1,532,916 13.08 127.71 106.50 19.92
X) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of ATFPF-AIACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:

Debt Market Review —FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commeodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
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infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the
MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mm. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economie prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.

xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particalars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees(000) @ | ~eeeceeccercom L S R——
June 30, 2017 - | 21,717 1.6 130.1384 | 128.5384
xii) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective

Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.
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xiii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-III

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 422
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 154
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 18
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 14
500,000.0000 & Above 4

Total 612

Xiv) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

xvV) Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

xvi) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-IV (AIActAP-IV)

i)

ii)

i)

iv)

vii)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk
tolerance of the Investor,

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’16 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value,

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation
plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l6 Aug'lé Sep'l6 Oct'l6 Nov'l6 Dec'l§ Jan'l7 Feb'l7 Mar'l? Aprl7 May'l7 Jun'l7 FYID
AlActAP-IV 577% -03™ 062% -2.08% 6.63% 8.58% 1.86% 0.59% 0.48% 2.64% 275% -6.91% 21.49%
Benchmark 481% -064% -0.38% -2.44% 560% 1146% 2.05% -0.18% -165% 2.72% 2.98% -8.25%  15.86%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -IV is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-
Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through
active asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s
outlook on the asset classes. During FY17, the fund generated a return of 21.49% against the
benchmark return of 15.86%.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds 78% 82%
Money Market Funds 0% 0%
Income Funds 19% 19%
Others 0% 0%
Cash 3% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil
Total 100% 100%
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viii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 21.49%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 11.42%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): 1.36
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

WNet Asset Value NAYV per unit
30;] ,;l | 30-Jun-16 Change 30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
1,540,270 | 1,364,625 12.87 126.09 105.34 19.70
X) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of ATFPF-AIACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:

Debt Market Review —FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commeodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
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infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the
MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mm. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.

xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees(@00) | —r—eeomeooee L e e —
June 30, 2017 - | 23,210 1.9 128.7975 | 126.8975
xii) Desecription and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective

Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.
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xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-IV

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 361
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 117
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 28
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 13
500,000.0000 & Above 3

Tetal 522

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-V (AIActAP-V)

i)

iv)

vi)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk
tolerance of the Investor.

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’17 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value.

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme

Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation
plans.

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

AlActAP-V - 017%  0.69% -240% 651% 871%  2.09% 060% 048% 271%  2.89% -7.05% 15.54%

Benchmark - -0.22%  -0.04% -257%  556% 11.49%  207% -0.18% -164% 271%  298% -B18% 1131%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active
asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on
the asset classes. The fund was launched on 15-Aug-2016 and has generated a return of 15.54% against
the benchmark return of 11.31% since inception.
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viii)

ix)

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds - 82%
Money Market Funds - 0%
Income Funds - 18%
Others - 0%
Cash - 0%
Leverage - Nil
Total - 100%

Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 15.54%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): N/A
Sharpe Ratio {12m trailing): N/A

Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in
case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAYV per unit
30-Jun-
17 30-Jun-16 Change 30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees Y
2,255,482 | - N/a 113.06 - N/a

Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of AIFPF-AIACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:
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Debt Market Review - FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review - FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the
MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY'17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mn. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.
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xi)

Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-

- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and

-~ statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees(000) @ |  ceeeeceoemsmoonm A e —

June 30, 2017

49,874 2.5

116.2871 | 113.7871

xil)

xiif)

xiv)

xv)

xvi)

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise

disclosed in the financial statements

There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-V

0.0001 9,999.9999 609
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 226
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 27
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 19
500,000.0000 & Above 6

Total 887

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft

commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions

conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions

conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-V (AIActAP-VI)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
AIFPF is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as
per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk
tolerance of the Investor,

iiii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Collective Investment Scheme aims fo provide capital protection at completion of the duration;
the performance so far till end June’17 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective
of earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation

plan
V) Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks
Monthly Yield Jul'l6 Aug : pr'17 Ma
AIACtAP-VI - - - - 0.11% 6.12% 208% 0.67% 0.54% 2.71% 282% -692% 7.90%
Benchmark - - - - 0.09% 8.30% 202% -018% -161%  2.65% 293% -8.06%  5.50%

vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance
The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -VI is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-
Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through
active asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s
outlook on the asset classes. The fund was launched on 21-Nov-2016 and has generated an absolute
return of 7.90% against the benchmark return of 5.50% since inception.
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vii)

viii)

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-17
Equity Funds - 80%
Money Market Funds - 0%
Income Funds - 20%
Others - 0%
Cash - 1%
Leverage - Nil
Total - 100%

Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: 7.90%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): N/A
Sharpe Ratio {12m trailing): N/A

Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in
case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAYV per unit
30-Jun-
17 30-Jun-16 Change 30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees Y
2,427,354 | - N/a 105.52 - N/a

Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period

The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager’s outlook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of AIFPF-AIACTAP-I are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:
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Debt Market Review - FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check
at 4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking
cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in
FY16) against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five
year paper with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively, Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%,
6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The vield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3
Year, 5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between
annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the
MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to
MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty
surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a
return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities
and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement
in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mm. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow.
However, improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability.
The mutual fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and
depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade
balance. The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to
appreciation of price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the
CPEC project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per
capita income will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.
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x)

Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-

- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and

~ statement of effects on the NAVY before and after distribution is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAV
Rupees(000) @ |  ceeeeceoemsmoonm A e —

June 30, 2017

55,210 2.4

108.5851 | 106.1851

xii

xiif)

xiv)

xV)

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise

disclosed in the financial statements

There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
ATACTAP-VI

0.0001 9,999.9999 848
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 316
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 50
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 33
500,000.0000 & Above 2

Total 1,249

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft

commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions

conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme,

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions

conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

29




PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-|

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in ‘000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees

Class A units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund
Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year
Since launch / Two Year

OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees

Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

Money Market Funds

Equity Funds

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %

Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 23 June 2015.

DISCLAIMER

2017

2,986,997

101.1000
97.0560 *

29.16
9.47)
5-Jun-17
38.63

29.16
19.36

142.3355
136.64 *

100.8374
96.80 *

100

100

2016

2,515,834

108.2127
103.8842

9.55

791
27-hun-16

1.50
10-Jul-15

0.14

9.55
9.55

111.21
106.76

93.31
89.58

1.00
20.00
79.00

160

2015

2,354,885

100.1770
95.1682

0.11
0.11
26-Jun-15

0.11
0.11

95.17
90.41

100.96
95.91

5.00
70.00
25.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as

well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-{i

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees

Class A units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund
Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %

Since Launch One Year

Two Year

OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees

Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

Money Market Funds

Equity Funds

income funds

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 28 September 20135.

DISCLAIMER

*

2017

2,792,048

138.4669
133.1797

21.73
21.53

30-Jun-17
0.20

21.73
16.55

151.9933
146.1896

113.9195
109.5696

2.00
0.00
80.00
18.00

106

2016

2,606,094

109.5709
105.1881

11.36
9.61

27-Jun-16
1.75

11.36
11.36

112.89

108.37

96.04
92.19

2.00
20.00
78.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go

down, as well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-lil

2017 2016

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 1,733,390 1,532,914
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees
Class A units - Offer 132.7798 106.5023

- Redermption 127.70697 102.2422
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund 21.41 8.39
Capital Growth (per unit) 19.81 6.54
Date of Income Distribution 30-Jun-17 27-Jun-16
Income Distribution 1.60 1.85
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since One Year 21.41 8.39
Two year 14.90 8.39
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 147.41 109.87
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 141.78 10547
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 110.73 94.15
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 106.50 90.39
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances 1.00
Money Market Funds 20.00
Equity Funds 80.00
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Mutual Funds 101

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 22 Dec 2015.

DISCLAIMER

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1V

2017

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 1,540,268
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees
Class A units - Offer 131.0942

- Redemption 126.0885
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund 21.49
Capital Growth (per unit) 19.59
Date of Income Distribution 30-Jun-17
Income Distribution 1.90
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since One Year 21.49
Two Year 14.31
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 109.52
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 105.34
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 145.79
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 140.23

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

income funds

Equity Funds

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %

Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 29 March 2016.

DISCLAIMER

2016

1,364,624

105.3405
101.1269

7.13

5.38
27-Jun-16

1.75

7.13
7.13

108.58

104.23

99.78
95.78

3.00
19.00
78.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go

down, as well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-V

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees

Class A units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund
Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since Launch/ One Year
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees

Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

income funds

Equity Funds

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %

Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 15 Aug 2016.

DISCLAIMER

2017

2,255,483

116.8918
113.0581

15.54
13.04

30-Jun-17
2.50

15.54

131.00
126.70

101.71
98.38

0.00
18.00
82.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment

returns may go down, as well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-VI

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees

Class A units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund
Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since Launch/ One Year
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees

Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

income funds

Equity Funds

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %

Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 21 NOV 2016.

DISCLAIMER

2017

2,427,355

169.09
105.52

7.90

5.50
30-Jun-17

2.40

7.90

122.13
118.13

103.39
100.00

1.00
20.00
80.00

161

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns

may go down, as well as up.
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LINMTED

Head Office:

COC Moute, 998 Block 8,
SM.CH S Mains Shahra-a-Famsal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan

Tel: (92:21) 111:111.500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020- 213

LIRL: wevraw. cdicpakistan com

Email: info@cdepak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Al-

Ameen [slamic Financial Planning Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that UBL Fund

Muanagers Limited beaing the Management Company of the Fund has i all matenal respects

managed the Fund during the vear ended June 30, 20017 1 accordance wih the

provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(11} The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

{131) The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Natified Emities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 25, 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, fo the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AIFPF- AIACtAP-l in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-| by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AIACtAP-| for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the Shariah
principles.

During the year, PKR Nil has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, fo the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AlFPF- AIACtAP-II in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-ll by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AIACtAP-1I for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the Shariah
principles.

During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, o the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AIFPF- AIACtAP-II in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-lIl by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AIACtAP-lII for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.
During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, o the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AIFPF- AIACtAP-IV in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-IV by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AlACtAP-IV for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.
During the year, PKR NIL amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, o the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AlFPF- AIACtAP-V in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-V by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AlACtAP-IV for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.
During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, fo the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i. We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AlFPF- AIACtAP-VI in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AlFPF-
AIACtAP-VI by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

il On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-
AlACtAP-VI for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.
During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our
mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHL:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED WITH THE BEST
PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the “Code”), contained
in Chapter 5 (clause 5.19.24) of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance, whereby, a listed entity is managed in compliance with the
best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of UBL Fund Managers Limited (the “Management Company”),
which is an unlisted public company, manages the affairs of Al Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund
(the “Fund”). The Fund being a unit trust open end scheme does not have its own Board of Directors. The
units of the Fund are listed as a security on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited; therefore, the Management
Company has applied the principles contained in the Code to the Fund in the following manner:

01. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors. All the
directors except the Chief Executive Officer of the Management Company are non-executive
directors, two of whom are independent non-executive directors.

Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Tariq Kirmani
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri
Non - Executive Directors Mr. Zia ljaz
Mr. Zulfigar Alavi
Syed Furrukh Zaeem
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under regulation 5.19.1(b) of the Rule Book
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

02. The existing directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven
listed companies, including the Management Company.

03. All the resident directors of the Management Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them
has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a Broker of a
stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

04. No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.

05. The Management Company has prepared a 'Code of Conduct' and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Management Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.
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06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies for the Fund. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which these were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of
the CEO have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in
every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were
circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

In order to apprise the directors on their duties and responsibilities and the requirements of the Code,
the Management Company has a process in place to conduct formal orientations for new directors.
Furthermore, five directors on the Board have completed the Director Training Program (DTP) and
are certified directors, while two Independent directors are exempt from the DTP under the Code of
Corporate Governance 2012, The directors are well conversant with the relevant laws applicable to the
Fund and the Management Company, its policies and procedures and provisions of memorandum and
articles of association and are aware of their duties and responsibilities.

There was no appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year.

The Directors' report relating to the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2017 has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed.

The financial statements of the Fund were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO of the Management
Company before approval of the Board.

The Directors, CEO, and executives do not hold any interest in the units of the Fund other than that
being disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

The Management Company has complied with all the applicable corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code.

The Board has formed a Board Audit Committee which comprises of five members, all of whom are
non-executive directors including the chairman of the Committee who is an independent non-
executive director.

The meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held, at least, once in every quarter and prior to the
approval of interim and final results of the Fund as required by the Code. The terms of reference have
been approved in the meeting of the Board of Directors and the Committee has been advised to ensure
compliance with those terms of reference.
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17. The Management Company has an in-house internal audit function. The internal audit team is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Fund and they are involved in the internal andit function on a full time basis.

18. The Board has formed a Human Resource and Compensation Committee. It comprises of four
members, of whom three are non-executive directors, one is an executive director and the chairman of
the Committee is an independent non- executive director.

19. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Management Company or units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The ‘closed period', prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which
may materially affect the market price of Fund's securities, was determined and intimated to directors,
employees and stock exchange.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once
through stock exchange.

23. The Management Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of
persons having access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely
manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons
from the said list.

24. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

YASIR QADRI Karachi.
Chief Executive Dated: August 23, 2017
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Complinpce (the Statement) with the best practices contained in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepaned by the Bowrd of Directors (the Board) of UBL Fund
Managers Limited, the Management Company of Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund (the Fund),
for the year ended June 30, 2017 to comply with Regulation No, 5,19 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Uimited, where the Fund ks listed,

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Management
Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be
ehjectively verified, whather the Statement reflects the status of the Fund's compliance with the
provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to Righlight any noa-compliance with the
requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to Inguirtes of the Management Company’s
personnel and réview of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the
Code.

As part of our audit of Minancial statements we are regquired 1o obtain an understanding of the accounting
and Intemal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach, We are
not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all risk and controls, or
to form an cpinion on the affectiveness of such intemnal contrals, the Management Company’s corporate

governance procedurcs and risks,

The Code requires Management Company to place before tha Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place befare the Board for their raview and approval of the
Fund's nelated party transactions distinguishing between transactions camed out on terms equivalent to
those that prevall in arm’s length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length
prices recording proper Justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism, We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of approval of the related party
transactions by the Board upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, We have not carried out any
procedures to determine whether the refated party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price
or not.

Based cn our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Fund's compliance, in all material respacts, with the best
practices cantained in the Code, as applicable to the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Notasye. Uoutag Aty

Chartered Accountants

Dated: August 23, 2017
Place: Karachl

Wearrrie ol
Dwicitte Touchs Tohmatau Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund (the
Fund), which comprise the statement of assets and llabilities as at June 30, 2017, and the related income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, distribution statement, statement of movement in unit
holders’ fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management Company’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

UBL Fund Managers Limited (the Management Company) Is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as the Management Company determines Is
necessary to enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financlal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Fund’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Fund's Internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinlon.

Opinion
In our opinian, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund's

affairs as at June 30, 2017, and of its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the year
then ended in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Mg of
Deplaitte Touihe Tohmatiu Limdted
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.6 to the financial statements, which states that Al-Ameen [slamic Active
Allocation Plan - I (AIACTAP-I) has matured on June 22, 2017, Further, Al-Ameen Islamic Active
Allocation Plan-11 (AIACTAP-11), Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-111 (ATACTAP-1II) and Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Allocation Plan-IV (AIACTAP-IV) are due to mature on September 26, 2017, December 21,
2017 and March 28, 2018, Accordingly the financial statements of AIACTAP-I, AIACTAP-11, AIACTAP-II1
and ATACTAR-IV have been prepared on a basis other than going concern. However, no adjustments are
required as the assets and liabilities are stated at the values at which they are expected to be realised or
settled. Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinien, the financial statements have been prepared, In all material respects, in accordance with

the relevant provisions of the Non - Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules,
2003 and Non - Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner
Nadeem Yousuf Adil

Date: August 23, 2017
Place: Karachi

Memiber of
Disloitts Touche Tohmatey Limdted
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 22, 2017 AND JUNE 30, 2017

ASSBETS

Bank balances

Investments

Profit receivable on bank deposits
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payable to UBL. Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited -
Trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

Face value per unit

June 22, 2017

June 30, 2017

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

AIACTAP-I  AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-II AIACTAP-IV AIACTAP-V AJACTAP-VI Total
Not {Rup in "000)
4 6,296 49,083 6,977 17,764 217,555 18,138 125,813
5 3,043,112 2,775,260 1,765,371 1,561,226 2,287,263 2,469,916 13,902,148
23 522 38 79 111 90 863
6 - N - u N N -
3,049,431 2,824,865 1,772,386 1,578,060 2,314,829 2,488,144 14,028,824
7 455 514 310 291 415 446 2,431
8 169 227 149 135 188 201 1,068
] 2,043 2,477 1,307 1,162 1,512 1,183 9,384
10 58,767 28,802 37,23 37,211 57,332 58,960 280,403
62,434 32,820 38,997 38,799 59,447 60,790 293,287
2,986,997 2,792,045 1,733,389 1,540,270  2,255482 2,427,354 13,735,537
2,986,897 2,792,045 1,733,389 1,540,270  2,255482 2,427,354 13,735,537
24
{Number of units)
11 29,545,330 20,964,506 13,572,891 12,215,775 19,949,582 23,004,340
{Rupees)
101.10 133.18 127.71 126.09 113.06 105.52
100 100 100 100 100 100
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 22, 2017 AND JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS

Bank balances

Investments

Profit receivable on bank deposits
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

Face value per unit

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

june 30, 20186
AIACTAP- AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-HI AIACTAP-IV Total
Note {Rupees in "000)
4 9,219 55,179 10,854 38,231 113,483
5 2,522,441 2,569,405 1,533,497 1,344,607 7,969,950
153 111 43 183 490
6 2,442 - - - 2,442
2,534,255 2,624,695 1,544,394 1,383,021 8,086,365
7 1,493 1,523 800 360 4,176
8 199 205 130 118 652
9 1,780 1,390 569 255 3,994
10 14,949 15,481 9,979 17,663 58,072
18,421 18,509 11,478 18,396 66,894
2,515,834 2,606,096 1,532,916 1,364,625 8,019,471
2,515,834 2,608,006 1,532,916 1,364,625 8,019,471
24
{Number of units)
1 23,248,982 23,784,535 14,393,244 12,954,418
{Rupees)
108.21 109.57 106.50 105.34
100 100 100 100
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

For the For the For the For the For the For the For the
eriod year yeoar yeoar period from period from year / pericd
p August 15, Movember 22,
ended ended ended ended 2015 to 2016 to ended
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 June 30 June 30,
2017 2017 2017 2017 2047 2047 2017
AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-ll AIACTAP-lll AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V AIACTAP-VI Total
Note {Rupees in "000)
INCOME
Profit on bank deposits 531 3,196 551 1,529 5,121 2,734 13,662
Gain on sale of investments - net 721,692 98,084 38,360 33,762 38,486 34,776 965,160
Dividend income - 73,946 46,319 41,422 60,835 64,400 286,922
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments

classified as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - net 5.1 673 398,020 253,293 224,258 228,815 97,973 1,203,032
Back end load income 3,945 7,797 2,639 2,735 4,152 6,256 27,524
Total income 726,841 581,043 341,162 303,706 337,409 206,139 2,496,300
EXPENSES
Allocated expenses 7.1 2,724 2,302 1,742 1,550 2,015 1,578 12,511
Remuneration to Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited - Trustee 8.1 2,585 2,742 1,759 1,596 1,956 1,508 12,146
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange -

Commission of Pakistan 9.1 2,044 2,178 1,308 1,163 1,512 1,183 9,388
Auditors’ remuneration 12 16 55 55 55 51 51 283
Bank charges 5 4 2 3 8 - 20
Listing fee 10 10 10 10 11 - 51
Legal and professional charges 235 13 - 13 4 - 262
Shariah advisory fee 56 62 56 64 57 40 335
Printing expenses 3 3 3 3 3 - 15
Postage expense - - 13 - = = 13
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 6 2,442 - - - - - 2,442
Total expenses 10,120 7,969 4,948 4,457 5,612 4,360 37,466
Net operating income 716,721 573,074 336,214 299,249 331,797 201,778 2,458,834
Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses)

included in prices of units issued less those in

units redeemed - net {74,7886) {58.,578) {18.063) {15,223) (16,192) {16,005) (197,847)
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 88 - - - - - 88
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 {17,080) {15,357) (8,588) {7,364) (6,208) (3,843) {58,240)
Net income for the year / period befors taxation 624,943 489,139 309,563 276,862 310,397 182,131 2,202,835
Taxation 13 - - - - - - -
Net income for the year / perlod after taxation 624,343 488,139 308,563 276,662 310,387 182,131 2,202,835
Eamings per unit 14
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

For the For the For the
For the period from period from period from For the
year ended September 28, December 23, March 28, year ended
June 30, 2015 to 2015to 2016 to June 30,
2016 June 30, June 30, June 30, 2016
2016 20186 2016
AIACTAP- AIACTAP-il AIACTAP-II AIACTAP-IV Total
Note (Rupees in ‘000)
INCOME
Profit on bank deposits 1,076 3,873 1,844 2,132 8,025
Gain on sale of investments - net 38,368 73,808 10,436 5,304 127,916
Dividend income 39,885 37,896 25,150 19,891 122,822
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classifled as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - net 51 152,799 155,065 83,348 64,576 455,788
Back end load income 1,878 1,807 933 142 4,560
Total income 234,006 272,349 121,711 92,045 720,111
EXPENSES
Allocated expenses 7.1 1,426 1,471 759 340 3,998
Remuneration to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 8.1 2,314 1,801 798 364 5,277
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 9.1 1,780 1,390 569 255 3,004
Auditors’ remuneration 12 87 75 75 52 289
Bank charges 17 5 4 1 27
Listing fee 25 - - - 25
Legal and professional charges 50 - - - 50
Shariah advisory fee 52 51 41 18 162
Printing expenses 128 - - - 128
Postage expense 17 - - - 17
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 8 2,503 - - - 2,503
Total expenses 8,398 4,793 2,246 1,030 16,468
Net operating income 225,607 267,556 119,465 81,015 703,643
Element of income / {loss) and capital gains / (losses) included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net (969) 1,122 353 495 1,001
Provision for workers' welfars fund 10.2 - - - - -
Net income for the year / period before taxation 224,638 268,678 119,818 91,510 704,644
Taxation 13 - - - - -
Net income for the year / period after taxation 224,638 268,678 118,818 91,510 704,644
Earnings per unit 14
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

For the For the For the For the F_or the F_or the
eriod ar ar sar period from period from For the
P e ye: ¥ August 15, November 22, year ended
ended ended ended ended
2016 to 2016 to June 30,
June 22, June 30, June 38, June 30, June 30 June 30 2047
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2047
AIACTAPR-L  AIACTAP-ll  AIACTAP-Ill  AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-Y AIACTAP-VL Total
{Rupees in "000)
Net income for the year / period after taxation 624,943 499,139 309,563 276,662 310,397 182,131 2,202,835
Other comprehensive income for the year / period
lterns that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement B - - M . - -
ltems that will not be reclassified subseguently to
income statement - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year / period 624,943 499,139 309,563 276,662 310,397 182,131 2,202,835
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Management Company)
Director

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net income for the year / period after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year / period

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement

Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to income statement

Total comprehensive income for the year / period

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the For the For the
For the period from period from period from For the
year ended September 28, December 23, March 28, year ended
June 30, 201510 2015 to 2016 to June 30,
2018 June 30, June 30, June 30, 2016
2016 2016 2016
AIACTAP- AIACTAP-N AIACTAP-II AIACTAP-IV Total
{Rupees in "000)
224,638 268,678 119,818 91,510 704,644
224,838 268,678 118,818 91,510 704,844
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Managerment Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Forthe  Forthe For the For the For the For the
eriod ar ar ear period from period from For the
:n ded e‘r’:ﬂe d el:\:e d e!r’a ded August 15, November22, year ended
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, JZ::: ;: JZ::: ;: Juz'; 30'
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-Ill AIACTAP-IV AIACTAPV AIACTAP-VI Total
{Rup in "000)
Undistributed Income at the beginning of the year / perled
- Realised income 38,182 72,575 10,242 4,607 - - 125,606
- Unrealised Income 152,799 155,065 83,348 64,576 - - 455,788
190,981 227,640 93,590 69,183 - - 581,394
Net income for the year/ period after taxation 824,943 499,138 309,563 276,882 310,387 182,131 2,202,835
Digtribution during the year / psriod
- Interim distribution declared on June 5, 2017
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1 @ Re. 38.63 per unit
- Cash {147,889) - - - - - {147,889)
- Bonus units (687,239) - - - - - (687,239)
- Interim cash distribution declared on June 30, 2017
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Il @ Re. 0.2 per unit - {4,194) - - - - {4,194}
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - il @ Rs. 1.6 per unit - - {21,717} - - - {21,717)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV @ Rs. 1.9 per unit - - - {23,210} - - {23,210)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V @ Rs. 2.5 per unit - - - - {49,874) - {49,874)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI @ Rs. 2.4 per unit - - - - - (55,210) {55,210)
{835,128) {4,184) {21,717) {23,210} {49,874) {55,210) {989,333)
Undistributed income carried forward {19,204) 722,585 381,436 322,635 260,523 126,921 1,794,896
Undistributed income carried forward comprising of:
- Realised (loss) / income {19,877) 324,639 128,161 98,377 31,708 28,948 591,956
- Unrealised income 673 397,946 253,275 224,258 228,815 97,973 1,202,940
{19,204) 722,585 381,436 322,635 260,523 126,921 1,794,896
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

For the For the For the
For the period from period from period from For the
year ended September 28, December 23, March 29, year ended
June 30, 2015 1o 2015 to 2016 to June 30,
2016 June 30, June 30, June 30, 2016
2016 2016 2016
AIACTAP-L ALACTAP AIACTAP-II AIACTAPIV Total
{Rupees in "000)
Undistributed income at the beginning of the year / period
- Realised income 138,858 - - - 138,858
- Unrealised loss (134,697) - - - (134,697)
4,161 - - - 4,161
Net income for the year / period after taxation 224,638 268,678 119,818 81,510 704,644
Distribution during the year / period
- Final cash distribution declared on July 10, 2015
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1 @ Re. 0.14 per unit (3,285) - - - (3,285)
- Interim cash distribution declared on June 24, 2016
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1 @ Rs. 1.50 per unit (34,533) - - - {34,533)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - I @ Rs. 1.75 per unit - (41,038) - - {41,038)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - [l @ Rs. 1.85 per unit - - (26,228) - {26,228)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV @ Rs. 1.75 per unit - - - {22,327) (22.,327)
{37,818) (41,038} (26,228) (22,327) (127,411)
Undistributed income carried forward 180,981 227,640 93,580 69,183 581,394
Undistributed income carried forward comprising of:
- Realised income 38,182 72,575 10,242 4,607 125,606
- Unrealised income 152,799 155,065 83,348 64,576 455,788
180,981 227,640 93,580 69,183 581,394
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS® FUND
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net assets at beginning of the year / period

issue of units

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1 : 8,151,493
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Il : 7,541
Al-Ameen Isiamic Active Allocation Plan - Il : 100,404
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV : 70,228
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - V : 20,856,016
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI : 24,821,075

Redemption of units

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1 : 1,855,145
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Ii : 2,827,570
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Ill : 820,757
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Aliocation Plan - IV : 808,863
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - V 1 1,006,434
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Vi@ 1,816,735

Element of (income) / loss and capital (gains) /
losses included in prices of units issued less
those in units redeemed - net

Gain on sale of investments - net

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement
of investments as financial assets 'at fair value
through profit or loss' - net

Nat other income for the year / period

Distribution during the year / period
- Cash”
- Bonus®

Neat assels al end of the year / pericd

Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year / period

Net assets value per unit at the end of the year / period

*Full details on distributions are given in the distribution statement.

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer
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For the For the For the For the F'c: rthe F!or the
eriod ar ar ear period from period from For the
P ¥ ye ¥ August 15, November22, vyearended
ended ended ended ended
2016 1o 201610 June 30,
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 June 30 2017
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
AIACTAP-l  AIACTAP-I AIACTAP4Il AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-Y  AIACTAP-VI Total
{Rupees in "000)
2,515,834 2,506,096 1,532,916 1,364,625 n - 8,019,471
857,183 - - - - - 857,183
- 811 - - - - 811
- - 13,291 - = - 13,291
- - = 9,025 - - 9,025
- - - - 2,095,936 - 2,095,936
. N - M - 2,482,562 2,482,562
{250,621) - - - - - {250,621)
- (368,385) - - - B (368,385)
- - {118,727) - - - {118,727)
- - - {102,055) - - {102,055)
- - - - {116,169) - {116,169)
- - - - - {198,134} {198,134)
606,562 {367,574) {105,4386) {93,030} 1,979,767 2,284,428 4,304,717
3,122,398 2,238,522 1,427,480 1,271,585 1,979,767 2,284,428 12,324,188
74,788 58,578 18,083 15,223 15,192 16,005 197,847
721,892 98,084 38,360 33,762 38,486 34,778 965,160
673 398,020 253,293 224,258 228,815 97,973 1,203,032
{97,422) 3,035 17.910 18,642 43,096 49,382 34,643
624,943 499,139 309,563 276,662 310,397 182,131 2,202,835
(147,889) {4,194) {21,717) {23,210) (49,874) {55,210} {302,084)
{687,239) - - - - - {687,239)
2,986,997 2,792,045 1,733,389 1,540,270 2,255,482 2,427,354 13,735,537
{Rupees)
108.21 109.57 106.50 105.24
101.10 133.18 127.71 126.09 113.06 105.52
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director




AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Forthe For the For the
For the period from period from period from For the
year ended September 28, December 23, March 28, year ended
June 30, 2015 to 2015 to 2016 to June 30,
2016 June 30, June 30, June 30, 2016
20186 2016 2016
AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-II AIACTAP-il AIACTAP-IV Total
{Rupees in "000)
Net assets at beginning of the year / period 2,354,884 - - - 2,354,884
issue of units
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - | : 1,382,217 139,862 - - - 139,962
Al-Ameen Isiamic Active Allocation Plan - Il : 25,232,889 - 2,526,531 - - 2,526,531
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Ilf : 14,637,803 - - 1,464,731 - 1,464,731
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV : 13,495,847 - - - 1,350,215 1,350,215
Redemption of units
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - I : 1,640,464 (166,801) - - - {166,801)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Ii : 1,448,354 - (146,953) - - {146,953)
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Il : 244,559 - - (25,052) - {25,052)
Al-Ameen lslamic Active Allocation Plan - IV : 541,431 - - - (54,278) (54,278)
(26,839) 2,379,578 1,439,679 1.295,937 5,088,355
2,328,045 2,379,578 1,439,679 1,295,937 7,443,239
Element of (income) / loss and caplial (gains) / losses included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net 969 {1,122) (353) (495) {1,001)
Gain on sale of investments - net 38,368 73,808 10,436 5,304 127,916
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
as financlal assets ‘at falr value through profit or loss' - net 152,799 155,065 83,348 84,576 455,788
Net other income for the year / period 33,471 39,805 26,034 21,630 120,940
224,638 268,678 119,818 81,510 704,644
Distribution during the year / period
- Cash* (37,818) (41,038) (26,228) (22,327) (127,411)
Net assets at end of the year / period 2,515,834 2,606,086 1,532,916 1,364,625 8,019,471
{Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year / period 100.18 - - -
Net assets value per unit at the end of the year / perlod 108.21 108.57 106.50 105.34
*Full details on distributions are given in the distribution statement.
The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL. Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year / period before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other ltems:

Dividend income

Gain on sale of investments - net

Reversal of Workers' Welfare Fund

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement
of investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - net

Element of (income) / loss and capital (gains) / losses
included in prices of units issued less those in
units redeemed - net

(Increase) / decrease in assets:

Investments
Profit receivable on bank deposits

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited -
Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Dividend income received

Net cash generated / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Recelpts from issuance of units

Payments against redemption of units

Cash dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
during the year / period

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the Forthe
e fee  fore Rl puiarem RS rorme
Pﬂ_‘ " w;m: Y‘:I " Yﬂf iy August 15, 22 year ended
2016 to ! June 30,
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 2016 to 2017
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 ' June 30,
2017
AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-IV AIACTAP-V AIACTAP-VI Total
{Rup in "000):
624,943 499,139 309,563 276,662 310,397 182,131 2,202,835
- (73,946) (46,319) (41,422) (60,835) (64,400) (286,922)
(721,692) (98,084) (38,360) (33,762) (38,486) (34,776) (965,160)
(88)| - 5 = 7 n (88)
17,080 15,357 8,588 7,364 6,208 3,643 58,240
2,442 - - - - - 2,442
(673)| (398,020) (253,293) (224,258) (228,815) (97,973)|| (1,203,032)
74,786 58,578 18,063 15,223 15,192 16,005 197,847
(628,145) (496,115) (311,321) (276,855) (306,736) (177,501) (2,196,673)
201,694 290,249 59,779 41,401 || (2,019,962)|| (2,337,167)|| (3,764,006)
130 (411) 5 104 (111) (80) (373)
201,824 289,838 59,784 41,505  (2,020,073)  (2,337,257) (3,764,379)
(1,038) (1,009) (490) (69) 415 446 (1,745)
(30)| 22 19 17 188 201 497
263 787 738 907 1,512 1,183 5,390
27,826 (4,609) (227) (7,903) 7,035 8,899 31,021
27,021 (4,809) 40 (7,048) 9,150 10,729 35,083
- 73,946 46,319 41,422 60,835 64,400 286,922
225,643 361,999 104,385 75,686  (1,946,427)  (2,257,498) (3,436,212)
169,944 811 13,201 9,025 || 2,095,936 2,482,562 || 4,771,569
(250,621) (368,385) (118,727) {102,055) (116,169) (198,134)|| (1,154,091)
(147,889) (521) (2,826) (3,123) (5,785) (8,792) (168,936)
(228,568) (368,095) (108,262) (96,153) 1,973,982 2,275,636 3,448,542
(2,923) (6,096) (3,877) (20,467) 27,555 18,138 12,330
9,219 55,179 10,854 38,231 - - 113,483
6,296 49,083 6,977 17,764 27,555 18,138 125,813
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer

59




AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 22, 2017 AND YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year / period before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Dividend income

Gain on sale of investments - net

Reversal of Workers' Welfare Fund

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and fioatation costs

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments

classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - net

Element of (income) / loss and capital (gains) / losses included in prices

of units issued less those in units redeemed - net

(Increase) / decrease in assets:

Investments
Profit receivable on bank deposits
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited -
Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Dividend income received
Net cash generated / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issuance of units
Payments against redemption of units
Cash dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
during the year / period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

For UBL Fund Managers Limited

(Management Company)

For the For the For the For the
period from period from period from For the
:n i September 28, December 23, March 29, year ended
June 30 2015to 2015 to 2016 to June 30,
2016 ' June 30, June 30, June 30, 2016
2016 2016 2016
AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-II AIACTAP-III AIACTAP-IV Total
(Rupees in "000)

224,638 268,678 119,818 91,510 704,644
(39,885) (37,896) (25,150) (19,891) (122,822)
(38,368) (73,808) (10,436) (5,304) (127,916)
2,503 - - - 2,503
(152,799) (155,065) (83,348) (64,576) (455,788)
969 (1,122) (353) (495) (1,001)
(227,580) (267,891) (119,287) (90,266) (705,024)
16,476 (2,340,532) (1.439,713) (1,274,727) (5,038,496)
1,824 (111) (43) (183) 1,487
8,357 - - - 8,357
26,657 (2,340,643) (1,439,756) (1,274,910) (5,028,652)
(52,448) 1,623 800 360 (49,765)
155 205 130 118 608

1,741 1,380 569 255 3,955
3,990 15,481 9,879 17,663 47,113

(46,562) 18,599 11,478 18,396 1911
39,885 37,896 25,150 19,891 122,822
17,038 (2,283,361) (1,402,597) (1,235,379) (4,904,299)
139,862 2,526,531 1,464,731 1,350,215 5,481,439
(166,801) {146,953) (25,052) (54,278) (393,084)
(37.,818) (41,038) (26,228) (22,327) {127.411)
(64,657) 2,338,540 1,413,451 1,273,610 4,960,944
(47,619) 55,179 10,854 38,231 56,645
56,838 - - - 56,838
9,219 55,179 10,854 38,231 113,483

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund (the "Fund"), was established under the Trust Deed executed between UBL Fund Managers
Limited (the Management Company - a wholly owned subsidiary company of United Bank Limited) as the Management Company and
the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed on December 16, 2014 and
was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on December 11, 2014 in accordance with the
raquirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). The Fund
commenced its operations from June 24, 2015.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered with the SECP as a Non-Banking Finance Company under the NBFC Rules,
2003. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 4th Floor, STSM Building, Beaumount Road, Civil lines,

The Fund is an open ended shariah compliant fund of fund scheme and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the
allocation plans of the Fund were initially offered to public through Initial Public Offering (IPQ). Subsequent to the IPQ, the offer of Units
of the Allocation Plans at the Initial Offer Price discontinued. The Units of the Allocation Plans could then be purchased at their Offer
price and redeemed at the Redemption Price, which shall be calculated on the basis of Net Asset Value (NAV) of each Allocation Plan.
The units are transferable and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of unit holder. The Fund consists of
multiple plans and aims to generate return for investors in line with their risk tolerance level. The duration of the Fund is perpetual,
however, the allocation plans have a standard time frame of two years. Each Allocation Plan announces separate NAVs which rank pari
passu inter se according to its number of Units. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis.

The Fund mainly makes investments in designated authorised investments approved by the Shariah Advisory Board and offers Shariah
Compliant returns to the investors. Under Circular 07 dated March 6, 2008 issued by the SECP, the Fund is categorised as a Shariah
Compliant Fund of Funds.

In the current year, two new plans {i.e. Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - V and Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - V1)
were introduced. While (Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - 1) has matured on June 22, 2017. Consequently, there are five plans
as at June 30, 2017 and following are the commencement and maturity dates of each plan:

Commencement Maturity
Date Date
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - | (AIACTAP-1) 23-Jun-15 22-Jun-17
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Il (AIACTAP-II) 28-Sep-15 26-Sep-17
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Ili (AIACTAP-iil} 23-Dec-15 21-Dec-17
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV (AIACTAP-IV) 29-Mar-16 28-Mar-18
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - V (AIACTAP-V) 15-Aug-16 14-Aug-18
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI (AIACTAP-VI) 21-Nov-16 20-Nov-18

During the year, Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - | (AIACTAP-1) matured on June 22, 2017. Therefore, the financial
information of AIACTAP-| has not been prepared on a going concern basis. However, no adjustments are required in these financial
statements as the assets and liabilities are stated at values at which they are expected to be realised or settled. Subsequent to June
30, 2017, maturity proceeds has been paid by the Management Company based on net asset value as at June 30, 2017.

Further, the duration of the Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-ll (AIACTAP-II), Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1ii
{(AIACTAP-III) and Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-1V (AIACTAP-1V) is twenty four months starting from the first day of
subscription period, i.e. September 28, 2015, December 23, 2015 and March 29, 2016 respectively and the plans shall stand
automatically dissolve after twenty four months, unless the Management Company decides otherwise. Consequently, the Management
Company has assessed and concluded that the AIACTAP-li and AIACTAP-Ill and AIACTAP -V are no longer a going concern and the
financial information of said plans is prepared on a basis other than going concern. However, no adjustments are required in these
financial statements as the assets and liabilities are stated at values at which they are expected to be realised or settied.

All existing Islamic allocation plans have an objective to earn potentially high returns through active asset allocation between Islamic
Equity scheme(s) and Islamic Income scheme(s). The Management Company actively manages the allocations, from time to time,
based on the outlook for the asset-classes and may invest up to 100% in Isiamic Equity, Islamic income and Islamic money market
schemes. The un-invested amounts or funds, if any, shall be kept in cash and / or near cash instruments where near cash instruments
include cash in islamic Bank and / or Islamic Banking windows of conventional bank account (excluding TDRs) with rating not lower
than AA- (AA minus) or any other rating allowed by the SECP from time to time.

Since AIACTAP-V was launched on August 15, 2016 and AIACTAP-VI was launched on November 22, 2016, therefore, there are no
corresponding figures for income statement, statement of comprehensive income, distribution statement, statement of cash flows and
statement of movement in unit holder's fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee of the Fund.

JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned management guality rating of AM2++ (stable outlook) to the Management Company as
at December 31, 2016.
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2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Crdinance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the directives issued by the SECP. Wherever the requirements of
the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRSs, the
requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP prevail.

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on May 30, 2017 and came into force at once. Subsequently, Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan has notified through Circular No. 17 of July 20, 2017 that companies whose financial year closes on
or before June 30, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Hence these financials are prepared in accordance with the Ordinance.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year

The following amendments to published accounting standards are effective for the year ended June 30, 2017. These amendments are
either not relevant to the Fund’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’: Clarification regarding changes in the
method of disposal of an asset.

- Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments — Disclosures”: Disclosure requirements for servicing arrangements on continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets.

- Amendments to IFRS 10 '‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' and IAS 28
{Revised 2011) 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Investment Entities: Applying the consolidation exception

- Amendments to IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements’ - Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations
- Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Disclosure initiative

- Amendments to IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment' and IAS 38 ‘'Intangible Assets’ - Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization

- Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property Plant and Equipment' and IAS 41 'Agriculture’ - Measurement of bearer plants

- Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’: Clarification that the same currency bonds be used to determine the discount rate in
which benefits are to be paid.

- Amendments to IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’ - Equity method in separate financial statements

New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following amendments to published accounting standards and new IFRS interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Fund's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial statements other than certain additional

disclosures.
Effective Date

{accounting periods
beginning
on or after)

- Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment” Clarification of the

classification and measurement of share based payment transactions January 01, 2018

- Amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows' - Amendments as a result

J 01, 2017
of the disclosure initiative anuary

- Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred tax assets

January 01, 2017
for unrealised losses v
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2.5

2.6

Effective Date
{accounting periods
beginning
on or after)

- Amendrpents to IAS_28 'Inv§§tments in Asso,ciates and Joint Ventures' — January 01, 2018

Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value

- Amendments to IAS_ 40 'Investment Property’: Clarification on transfers of January 01, 2018

property to or from investment property

- Amendments to IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities".

1,2017

Clarification of scope of the standard January 01, 20

- IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’:
Provides guidance on fransactions where consideration against non-
monetary prepaid asset / deferred income is denominated in foreign

January 01, 2018

- IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments': Clarifies the accounting
treatment in relation to determination of taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'.

January 01, 2019

Other than the aforesaid interpretations and amendments, the (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been
adopted locally by the SECP:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 17 ~ Insurance Contracts

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires
management to exercise the judgment in application of its accounting policies. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions
are based on the historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year
of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(I} classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 3.2 and 5); and
(i) impairment of financial assets (note 3.2.5)

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain financial assets are carried at
fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund
operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
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3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2
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3.24

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise bank balances and short-term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities at cost.

Financial assets
Classification

The classification of financial assets depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. The management
determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets are classified as follows:
a) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
b} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These financial assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices. These
include held-for-trading investments and such other investments that, upon initial recognition, are designated under this category.

¢} Avallable for sale
These are non-derivate financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables,
(b) held to maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to the needs for liquidity or change in price.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the transaction cost

associated with the acquisition, except in case of "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss", in which case the transaction
costs are charged off to the income statement.

Subsequent measurement
a) Financial assets at "fair value through profit or loss’ and "available for sale’

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss' and ‘available for sale’ are valued as
follows:

- Basis of valuation of Units of Mutual Funds

The investment of the Fund in Mutual Funds is valued on the basis of closing Net Asset Value {(NAV) of the underlying mutual
funds at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are taken to
the income statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for sale financial assets are taken to the statement of
comprehensive income until these are derecognised or impaired. At the time of impairment or derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income is shown in the income statement.

b} Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the ‘income statement' when financial assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or
impaired.
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3.3

3.4
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3.6

3.7

38

Impairment

The Management Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the financial assets or a group of
fund's financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

In case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity security below
its cost is considered as objective evidence of impairment. In case of available for sale securities, the cumulative loss previously
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is removed therefrom and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses on equity securities recognised in the income statement are only reversed when the equity securities are derecognised.

For certain other financial assets, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The provision against these amounts is made as per the provisioning
policy duly formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with the requirements of
the SECP.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights o receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired or have been
transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrument. These
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelied or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the staternent of assets and liabilities when there is

a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settle on a net basis or realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative instrument is
remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the income statement. Derivatives with positive fair values
{unrealised gains) are included in other assets and derivatives with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are included in other
liabilities in the statement of assets and liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of the Fund and
include underwriting commission, brokerage paid to the members of the stock exchange and other expenses. These costs are being
amortised over a period of two years commencing from the date of plan, in accordance with the Trust Deed of the Fund and NBFC
Regulations, 2008.

Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains,
whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders {excluding distribution made by issuance of bonus units).

The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate Tax) under clause
11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

65



38

3.10

3

3.12

3.13

The Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue
availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Distributions
Dividend distribution to the Unit Holders is recognized in the period in which these are approved.
Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are allocated at the offer price for each allocation plan, prevalent on the day on which the applications for purchase of
units are received, however, units are issued on the receipt of cash / realisation of cheques. The offer price represents the net asset
value per unit as at the close of the business day plus the allowable front-end sales load and provision of any duties and charges, if
applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price of each allocation plan, applicable to units for which the Fund receives
redemption applications during the business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as at the
close of the business day less any back-end load and an amount that the management company may consider to be an appropriate
provision of duties and charges. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of application for redemption.

Element of income / loss and capital gain / loss included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed
An equalisation account called the *element of income / loss and capital gains / losses included in prices of units issued less those in

units redeemed' is created, in order fo prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on redemption.

The 'element of income / loss and capital gains / losses in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed’ account is credited with
the amount representing net income / loss and capital gains / losses accounted for in the net asset value and included in the sale
proceeds of units. Upon redemption of units, the ‘element of income / loss and capital gains / losses in prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed’ account is debited with the amount representing net income / loss and capital gains / losses accounted for in the net
asset value and included in the redemption price.

The ‘element of income / loss and capital gains / losses in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed’ during the year is
transferred to the 'income statement’ in each plan of the Fund.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is calculated by dividing the net assels of
each allocation plan by the number of units in issue of the respective plans at the year end.

Revenue recognition
- Dividend income on units of mutual funds is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive the dividend is

- Realised capital gains /losses arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at which the sale
fransaction takes place.

- Income on bank balances and term deposits is recognised on a time proportionate basis.

- Element of income / loss and capital gains / losses included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed of each
allocation plan is included in income statement of respective sub-fund on the date of issue and redemption of units.

- Back end load is recognised in the income statement at the time of redemption of units.

66



June 22, 201 June 30, 2017
AIACTAP-  AIACTAP- AJIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-
Total
I i HH v \' Vi
Note {Rupees in '000)
4, BANK BALANCES
In local currency
- Profit and loss sharing accounts 4.1 6,206 49,083 6,977 17,764 27,555 18,138 125,813
June 30, 2016
AIACTAP-  AIACTAP-  AIACTAP- AIACTAP-  AIACTAP-  AIACTAP-
Total
| 1] 1] v Vv \
Note {Rupsees in ‘000)
In local currency
- Profit and loss sharing accounts 4.1 9,219 55,179 10,854 38,231 - - 113,483
4.4 Profit rate on these profit and loss sharing accounts is 5.5% (June 30, 2016 : 5.75%) per annum.
June 22, 2017 June 30, 2017
AIACTAP-  AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-
Total
I [} i1} ' v Vi
Note {Rupees in "000)
5, INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss - Held-for-trading
Unit of mutual funds 5.1 3,043,112 2,775,260 1,765,371 1,561,226 2,287,263 2,468,916 13,902,148
June 30, 2016
AIACTAP-  AIACTAP-  AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-  AIACTAP-
Total
| 1] ] \Y \Y Vi
{Rupees in "'000)
At fair value through profit or loss - Held-for-trading
Units of mutual funds 5.1 2,522,441 2,569,405 1,533,487 1,344,607 - - 7,969,950
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5.1

Units of Mutual Funds

- Market
As at Total Appre;:latlon v::::: a value as a
As at Purchased | Redemptions | June 30, carrying PN percentage
Total mark iminution reen
Name of investee Funds July 01, | during the during 20171 value as at otal market | (d ution) |percentage of total
value as at as at of net
2016 year the year June 22, June 30, value of
June 30, 2017 June 30, assets
2017 2017 2017 %) Investment
(%)
---------------------- Number of units {Rupess in '000)-—rmmommmaommes
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 68,413,781 38,061,640 30,352,141 3,042,439 3,043,112 873 101.88 100.00
Al-Ameen slamic Sovereign Fund 5,103,019 44,649,304 49,752,323 - - - - - -
Ad-Ameen islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 18,417,382 19,141,410 37,558,792 - - - - - -
3,042,438 3,043,112 873 101.88 100.00
Al-Ameen islamic Active Allocation Plan - Il
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 14,997,903 14,997,903 - - - - - -
Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Fund 5,218,496 15,538,856 15,755,228 5,003,124 504,734 504,623 (111) 18.07 18.18
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 18,740,374 1,275,179 3,035,313 16,880,240 1,872,506 2,270,837 398,131 81.33 81.82
2,377,240 2,775,260 398,020 $8.40 100.00
Al-A Isiamic Active Allocation Plan - Ili
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 3,014,996 4,075,646 7.080,642 - - - - - -
Al-Ameen islamic Sovereign Fund - 8,675,131 3,278,048 3,397,085 342,71 342,635 {78) 19.77 19.41
Al-Ameen lslamic Dedicated Equity Fund 11,301,589 523,856 1,185,980 10,639,475 1,169,367 1,422,736 253,369 82.08 80.58
1,512,078 1,765,371 253,283 101.85 100.00
Al-Ameen lslamic Active Allocation Plan - IV
Al-Ameen islamic Cash Fund - 5,747,787 5,747,787 - - - - - -
Al-Ameen lslamic Sovereign Fund 2,817,308 6,261,656 6,014,685 2,864,278 288,960 288,896 {64) 18.78 18.50
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 8,913,004 641,582 1,039,874 9,514,712 1,048,008 1,272,330 224,322 82.60 81.50
1,336,968 1,561,226 224,258 101.36 100.00
Al-Ameen islamic Active Allocation Plan -V
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 22,386,870 22,386,870 - - - - - -
Al-Ameen lslamic Sovereign Fund - 31,156,734 27,006,018 4,150,716 418,740 418,648 {92) 18.56 18.30
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund - 15,360,255 1,386,413 13,873,842 1,639,708 1,868,615 228,907 82.85 81.70
2,058,448 2,287,263 228,815 101.41 100.00
Al-A Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 27,726,340 27,726,340 - - - - - -
Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Fund - 13,355,968 8,480,127 4,875,841 491,893 481,785 (108) 20.26 18.91
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund - 15,914,406 1,121,582 14,792,824 1,880,050 1,878,131 98,081 81.48 80.09
2,371,943 2,489,916 87,973 101.75 100.00
Total investments in units of mutual funds
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 3,014,996 143,348,327 116,011,182 30,352,141 3,042,439 3,043,112 673 22.18 21.89
Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Fund 12,938,820 117,637,649 110,286,427 20,291,042 2,047,038 2,046,587 (451) 14.80 14.72
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 58,372,358 52,856,688 45,327 954 65,801,083 7,809,639 8,812,449 1,202,810 84.16 63.39
12,689,116 13,902,148 1,203,032 101.21 100.00
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8.1

June 22, 2017 June 30, 2017
AJIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-

Total
PRELIMINARY EXPENSES | i 1 i A Vi
AND FLOTATIION COST Note {Rup in '000)
Opening balance 2,442 - - - - - 2,442
Amortisation during the period {2,442) “ “ B “ - (2,442)
Closing balance - - - - - - -
June 30, 2016
AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-
Total
I [} L v v Vi
Opening balance 4,945 - - - - - 4,945
Amortisation during the period {2,503) - - - - - (2,503)
Closing balance 2,442 - - - - - 2,442
PAYABLE TO UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs - - - - - - -
Allocated expenses 7.1 437 505 307 276 405 435 2,365
Shariah Advisor fee 3 9 3 10 10 10 45
Other payable 15 - - 5 - 1 21
455 514 310 291 415 448 2,431
June 30, 2016
AIACTAP-  AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-
Total
| 1l 1 I\ \4 Vi
{Rupees in "'000}):
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 15 - - - - - 15
Allocated expenses 7.4 1,426 1,471 759 340 - - 3,986
Shariah Advisory fee 52 52 41 20 - - 165
1,493 1,523 800 360 - - 4,176

As per regulation 60(3)(s) of the amended NBFC Regulations dated November 25, 2015, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the scheme, maximum up to 0.1% of
the average annual net assets or the actual cost whichever is lower. Accordingly, the Management Company has charged 0.1% of the average
annual net assets, being the lower amount, to the Fund.

June 22, 2017 June 30, 2017
AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP-
i i i v v i Total
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - Note {Rug in '000)
TRUSTEE
Trustee fee 8.1 169 227 149 135 188 201 1,069
June 30, 2016
AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- AIACTAP- T
otal
I i i [\ \% Vi
(Rupees in '000)
Trustee fee 199 208 130 118 - - 652

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for the services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust Deed and the
Offering Document as per the tariff structure specified therein, based on the daily net asset value of the Fund. The remuneration is paid
to the Trustee monthly in arrears.

As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document, the tariff structure applicable fo the Fund in respect of the Trustee fee is as follows:

On net assets:

Up to Rs.1,000 million 0.10% per annum of NAV
Over Rs. 1,000 million Rs.1.0 million plus 0.075% p.a. of NAV

69



9.1

10.

10.1

PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

June 22, 2017 June 30, 2017
AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-II  AIACTAP-IIl  AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V  AIACTAP-VI Total
Note {Rupees in "000)
Annual fee 9.1 2,043 2,177 1,307 1,162 1,512 1,183 9,384

June 30, 2016
AIACTAP-1 AIACTAP-Il  AIACTAP-IIl  AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V  AIACTAP-VI Total

{Rupees in '000)

Annual fee 9.1 1,780 1,380 569 255 - - 3,994

Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme classified as Fund of Funds scheme is required to pay
annual fee to the SECP, equivalent to 0.075% of the average annual net assets of the Fund.

June 22, 2017 June 30, 2017
AIACTAP- AIACTAP-II AIACTAPIIl AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V  AIACTAP-VI Total
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND Note {Rupess in "000)
OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors’ remuneration - 39 39 39 39 39 195
Tax deduction at source 32,412 444 2,262 2,465 5121 6,298 49,002
Provision for indirect taxes and duties 10.1 10,255 10,286 6,669 5,350 1,047 - 33,607
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 17,080 15,357 8,588 7,364 6,208 3,643 58,240
Dividend payable - 3,673 18,881 20,087 44,089 46,418 133,158
Capital gain tax payable - 22 218 1,247 161 1486 1,784
Others 20 81 564 659 667 2,418 4,407
59,767 29,902 37,231 37,211 57,332 58,960 280,403

June 30, 2016

AIACTAP-I AACTAP-I AIACTAP-I AIACTAP-IV AIACTAP-V AIACTAP-VI Total

{Rupees in '000)

Auditors’ remuneration 52 52 52 52 - - 208
Tax deduction at source 4,333 5,131 3,256 2,028 - - 14,748
Provision for indirect taxes and duties 10.1 10,255 10,286 6,669 5,350 - - 32,560
Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund 10.2 88 - - - - - 88
Dividend payable - - - - - - -
Capital gain tax payable 105 8 2 - - - 115
Others 116 4 - 10,233 - - 10,353
14,949 15,481 9,979 17,663 - - 58,072

Provision for indirect taxes and duties

As per the requirements of the Finance Act 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration of the
Management Company was applied with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the view that since the
remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation, which does not appear to be
the spirit of the law. The matter was collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly with other Asset Management
Companies and Trustees of respective Collective Investment Schemes (CISs), through a Constitutional Petition filed in the Honorable
Sindh High Court (SHC) during September 2013. In this respect, the SHC had issued a stay order against the recovery of FED due to
which the Fund has not made any payments for FED since establishment of the Fund.

Through Finance Act, 2016, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) including Asset Management
Companies, which are already subject to provincial sales tax, has been withdrawn. Therefore, no provision for FED has been recorded
after June 30, 2016.

On June 30, 20186, the Honorable Sindh High Court had passed a Judgment that after the 18th amendment in the Constitution of
Pakistan, the Provinces alone have the legislative power to levy a tax on rendering or providing services, therefore, chargeability and
collection of FED after July 01, 2011 is ultra vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. On September 23, 2016, the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) filed an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against above judgement, which is pending
adjudication. Pending the adjudication in the SCP, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, has maintained full
provision for FED aggregating to Rs. 33.61 million. Had the provision not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at
June 30, 2017 would have been higher by Rs. 0.35, Rs. 0.49, Rs. 0.49, Rs. 0.44, Rs. 0.05 and Rs. nil per unit of AIACTAP-I, AIACTAP-
i, AIACTAP-lII, AIACTAP-IV, AIACTAP-V and AIACTAP-V! respectively.
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10.2. Workers® Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

1.

The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers’ Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1871 (WWF Ordinance) as a result of
which it was construed that all Collective Investment Schemes / Mutual Funds (CISs) whose income exceeded Rs. 500,000 in a tax
year were brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two
percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever was higher. Subsequently, the Finance Act, 2015 introduced an amendment
under which CiSs have been excluded from the definition of “industrial establishment” subject to WWF under the WWF Ordinance.
Consequently, mutual funds are not subject to this levy after the introduction of this amendment which is applicable from tax year 20186.
Accordingly, no further provision in respect of WWF was made with effect from July 1, 2015.

The amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance were challenged in various High Courts of Pakistan. The Honorable Lahore High
Court (LHC) and the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) arrived at different conclusions in respect of the validity of the amendments
made through the Finance Act in relation to the WWF. Both the decisions of the LHC and the SHC were challenged in the Honorable
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). During the period, the SCP passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, declaring the insertion of
amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008 pertaining to WWF as unlawful for the reason that the WWF is not in the nature of
tax and therefore, could not be introduced through money bill under the Constitution. Subsequently, the Federal Board of Revenue
(FBR) has filed a review petition in the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending adjudication.

Further, as a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for the WWF was also on May 21, 2015 introduced by the
Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act 2014. SWWF Act 2014 requires every industrial
Establishment located in the province of Sindh and having total income of Rs. 500,000 or more in any year of account commencing on
or after the date of closing of account on or after December 31, 2013, to pay two percent of so much of its total income declared to
SWWEF. The said Act includes any concern engaged in the Banking or Financial Institution in the definition of “Industrial Undertaking”
but does not define Financial Institution. The Management Company, based on an opinion obtained by the Mutual Funds Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP), believes that Mutual Funds are not liable to pay Sindh WWF under the said law, for the reason that the Mutual
Funds are not financial institutions and rather an investment vehicle. However, the Sindh Revenue Board has not accepted the said
position of MUFAP and as a result, MUFAP has taken up this matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry for resolution.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of Federal and Sindh WWF on Mutual Funds, the MUFAP obtained a
legal opinion on these matters and based on such legal advice (which also stated that even if a review petition is filed by any party, such
petition can only be based on very limited grounds and the chances of any major change in the SCP judgement are very limited), has
recommended to all its members on January 12, 2017 the following:

i. The provision against the Federal WWF held by the Mutual Funds till June 30, 2015 should be reversed on January 12, 2017; and

ii. Provision against Sindh WWF, on prudent basis, should be made from the date of enactment of the Sindh WWF Act, 2014 (i.e.,
May 21, 2015) on January 12, 2017.

The above decisions were communicated to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Pakistan Stock
Exchange on January 12, 2017. In response to the aforementioned letter, SECP vide its letter dated February 1, 2017 advised MUFAP
that the adjustments relating to the above should be made prospectively and adequate disclosure shall be made in the financial
statement of mutual funds. Accordingly, on January 12, 2017 the provision for WWF was reversed and the provision for SWWF was
made for the period from May 21, 2015 to January 12, 2017. Thereafter, the provision for SWWF is being made on a daily basis.

For the For the
Fo;ﬁ:‘: Fo;;l’rxe Fo:;l:e Fo:;:xe paried from period from For the
pe ¥ ¥ ¥ August 15, November 22, year ended
ended ended ended ended
2Wi6to 2016 t0 June 30,
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 June 30 2017
g s
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
AIACTAPY  AIACTAP-H AIACTAPIIL  AIACTAPIY  AIACTAPY AIACTAPMI Total

PR PPy
Ad °f 7

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units in issue at the beginning of the vear 23,248,982 23,784,535 14,383,244 12,954,416 - - 74,381,177
Units issued during the year / period 1,667,898 7,541 100,404 70,228 20,956,016 24,821,078 47,623,163
Bonus 6,483,595 - - - - - 6,483,595
Units redeemed during the year / period {1,855,145)  (2,827,570) {820,757) {808,869) {1,006,434) {1,816,735) (8,235,511)
Total units in issue at the end of the year / period 29,545,330 20,964,506 13,572,891 12,218,775 19,949,562 23,004,340 119,252,424
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11.1

12.

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year
Units issued during the year / period
Units redeemed during the year / period

Total units in issue ai the end of the year / period

For the

For the

For the

For the period from . . For the For the
period from pericd from For the
year September year year
December 23, March 29, year ended
ended 28, ended ended
201510 2016 to June 30,
June 30, 201510 June 30, June 30,
June 30, June 30, 2016
2018 Juns 30, 2016 2016
2018 2018
2016
AIACTAP-l  AIACTAP-f AIACTAP-lIIE AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V AIACTAP-VI Total
{Number of units)
23,507,229 - - - - - 23,507,229
1,382,217 25,232,889 14,637,803 13,495,847 - - 54,748,756
{1,640,464)  (1,448,354) {244,559) (541,431) - - (3,874,808)
23,248,982 23,784,535 14,383,244 12,954416 - - 74,381,177

The par value of each unit is Rs. 100. The management of the Management Company has set a minimum investment of Rs. 10,000.

All units canry equal rights and are entitled to dividend and share in the net asset value of the respective plans.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee

Review of interim financial information

Review of compliance with the requirements
of the Code of Corporate Governance

Review of Shariah Compliance

Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

Annual audit fee

Review of interim financial information

Review of compliance with the requirements
of the Code of Corporate Govermnance

Review of Shariah Compliance

Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

For the For the
For"t:: Fo:;;?e Fo:;l:e F°:::e period from period from For the
pe ¥ V' ¥ August 15, November 22, year ended
ended ended ended ended
2016 to 2016 to June 30,
June 22, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30 June 30 2017
y ,
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
AIACTAPY  AIACTAP-H AIACTAP-III  AIACTAPIV  AIACTAPY AACTAP-VI Total
{Rupees in "000)
- 30 30 30 30 30 150
11 10 18 10 10 10 &1
- 3 3 3 3 3 15
- 3 3 3 3 3 15
5 9 g 9 5 5 42
16 55 55 55 51 5 283
For the
For the period from F.or the for the For the For the
ear September period from period from year yoar For the
¥ December 23, March 29, year ended
ended 28, ended ended
201510 2016 to June 30,
June 30, 201510 June 30, June 30,
June 30, June 30, 2018
2018 June 30, 2016 2018
2016 2018
2018
AIACTAP-l  AIACTAP-H AIACTAP-lIE  AIACTAP-IV  AIACTAP-V AIACTAP-VI Total
{Rupees in '000)
40 40 40 40 - - 160
21 21 21 - - - 63
4 4 4 4 - - 16
4 4 4 4 - - 16
4 4 4 4 - - 16
14 2 2 - - - 18
87 75 75 52 - - 288
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13.

14.

15.

16.

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (89) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or
unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under
clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year, Management Company has
distributed cash dividend of at least 80% of the Fund's net accounting income to its unit holders, accordingly, no provision for taxation
has been recognized in these financial statements.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Eamings per unit (EPU) for respective plans have not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company the determination
of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

As per Directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the SECP, the Total Expense Ratio of each plans are as follows:

AIACTAP-l AIACTAP-iI AIACTAP-IIIl AIACTAP-IV AIACTAP-V  AIACTAP-VI
Total expense ratio 0.97% 0.80% 0.78% 0.76% 0.51% 0.31%
Government levy, SWWF and SECP fee 0.70% 0.62% 0.59% 0.53% 0.36% 0.20%
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The financial assets and liabilities carried on the staternent of assets and liabilities are categorised as follows:
2047 2018
Loans Financlal Loans Financial assets
d assets at fair Total d at fair value Total
a_n value through o an through profit or ¢
receivables receivables
profit or loss ioss
{Rupees in "000)
Al-Ameen islamic Active Allocation Plan - |
Financial assets
Bank balances 6,286 - 6,296 9,219 - 9,219
Investments g 3,043,112 3,043,112 - 2,522,441 2,522,441
Profit receivable on bank deposits 23 - 23 1583 - 183
6,319 3,043,112 3,049,431 9,372 2,522,441 2,531,813
2017 2016
Liabilities "at Financial Liabilities "at Financial
fair value liabilition Total fair value liabiliies Total
through measured at hs through profit measured at
profit or loss’ amortised cost or loss’ amortised cost
{Rupees in "000)
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited
- Management Company - 455 455 - 1,493 1,483
Payabie to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 169 169 - 198 199
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 20 20 - 168 168
- 644 644 - 1,860 1,860
2017 20186
Loans Financial Loans Financial assets
nd assets at fair Total nd at fair value Total
a_ value through o & through profit or o
raceivables receivables
profit or loss ioss
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Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - il

Financial assetls

Bank balances
Investments
Profit receivable on bank deposits

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited
- Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trusiee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Aliocation Plan - il

Financial assets

Bank balances
Investments
Profit receivable on bank deposits

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited
- Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

49,083 - 49,083 55,179 - 55,179
- 2,775,260 2,775,260 - 2,569,405 2,569,405
522 = 522 111 - 111
48,605 2,775,260 2,824,865 55,290 2,568,405 2,624,695
2017 2016
Liabilities "at Financial Liabilities "at Financial
fair value llabilitios Total fair value liabilities Total
through measured at through profit measured at
profit or loss" amortised cost or loss’ amortised cost
{Rupees in "000)
- 514 514 - 1,523 1,523
- 227 227 - 205 205
= 3,793 3,793 - 56 56
- 4,534 4,534 - 1,784 1,784
2017 2016
Financial Financial assets
L:::s assets at fair Total L:::s at falr value Total
jvabl value through receivables through profit or
receivables profit or loss loss
{Rupees in '000)
8,977 - 6,977 10,584 - 10,584
- 1,765,371 1,765,371 - 1,533,487 1,533,497
38 - 38 43 - 43
7,015 1,765,371 1,765,371 10,627 1,533,487 1,544,124
2017 2016
Liabilities "at Financial Liabilities at Financial
falr value Habllitlos Total fair value liabilities Total
through measured at o through profit measured at a
profit or loss’ amortised cost or loss' amortised cost
{Rupees in '000)
- 310 310 - 800 800
- 149 148 - 130 130
- 19,494 19,494 - 52 52
- 198,853 19,853 - 282 882
2017 2016
Financial Financial assets
L:::s assets at fair Total L;::s at fair value Total
receivables valug through receivables through profit or
profit or loss loss

{Rupees In 000}
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Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV
Financial assets

Bank balances
Investmenis
Profit receivable on bank deposits

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited
- Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V
Financial assets

Bank balances
Investments
Profit recelvable on bank deposits

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited
- Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

17,764 - 17,764 38,231 - 38,231
- 1,561,226 1,561,228 - 1,344,607 1,344,607
79 - 79 183 - 183
17,843 1,561,226 1,579,069 38,414 1,344,607 1,383,021
2017 2016
Liabllitles ‘at Financial Liabilities "at Financial
fair value liabilities Total fair value liabilities Total
through measured at through profit measured at
profit or loss" amortised cost or loss' amortised cost
{Rupees in '000)
- 291 291 - 360 360
- 135 135 - 118 118
- 20,785 20,785 - 10.285 10,285
- 21,211 21,211 - 10,763 10,763
2017 2016
Loans Financial Loans Financial assets
and assets at fair Total and af fair value Total
racolvables value through receivables through profit or
profit or loss loss
{Rupees in 000}
27,555 - 27,555 - - -
- 2,287,263 2,287,263 - - -
111 - 111 - - -
27,666 2,287,263 2,314,929 - - -
2017 2016
Liabliitles "at Financlal Liabilities "at Financial
fair value liabilities Total fair value liabilities Total
through measurad at ° through profit measured at °
profit or loss" amortised cost or loss’ amortised cost
{Rupees in '000)
- 415 415 - - -
- 188 188 - - -
- 44,795 44,795 - - -
- 45,398 45,398 - - -
2017 2018
Loans Financial Loans Financial assets
assets at falr at fair value
and Total and i h orofit Total
recelvables value through receivables rough profit or
profit or loss ioss
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Al-Ameen lslamic Active Allocation Plan - Vi

Financial assets

Bank balances 18,138 - 18,138 - - -
Investments - 2,469,816 2,469,916 - - -
Profit receivable on bank deposits 80 - 80 - - -

18,228 2,469,816 2,488,144 - - -

2017 2016
Liabilities "at Financial Liabiliies ‘at Financial
fair value liabilities fair value liabilities
through measursd at Total through profit measured at Total
profit or loss” amortised cost or loss’ amortised cost

{Rup in "000)
Financlal liabliitles

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited

- Management Company - 446 448 - - -

Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 201 201 - - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 48,873 48,873 - - -
- 49,520 48,520 - - -

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Plans under the Fund primarily invest in shariah compliant equity, income and money market schemes within the prescribed limits.
The investment activities expose the Fund to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

17.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the internal risk
management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee and the regulations laid down by the SECP.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

17.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates.

At present, the Fund has no exposure to currency risk as there are no financial assets or financial liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.

17.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

a) Cash flow interest rate risk

Presently, the Fund does not hold any variable rate instrument except for balances in savings accounts the interest rate of which
remained at 5.5% per annum. During the year / period ended June 30, 2017, the net income would have increased by Rs. 0.06
million (2016: Rs. 0.09 million), Rs. 0.49 million (2016: 0.55), Rs. 0.07 million (2016: 0.11), Rs. 0.18 million (2016: 0.38), Rs. 0.28
million (2016: Nil) and Rs. 0.18 million (2016: Nil) in Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - |, Al-Ameen Islamic Active
Allocation Plan - Ii, Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - 1il, Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - 1V, Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Plan - V and Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI respectively, had the interest rates on savings
accounts with bank increased / {(decreased) by 100 basis points.

76



b)  Fair value interest rate risk

The Fund currently does not have any fixed rate instruments that are impacted by market interest rates.

17.1.3 Price risk

17.2

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund's exposure to price risk is limited to the fair value of the respective mutual funds in which it invests. The Fund manages its
exposure o price risk by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds as per the respective Allocation Plan in line with the risk tolerance
of the investor and benchmarking the sector weighting to that of average daily return of KMI 30 index and 6m deposit rate of AA- rated
(and above) Islamic Banks, based on actual proportion of investment in Equity and Income / Money Market.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in the fair value of the Fund's investments on June 30, 2017, net income for the year would increase /
decrease by Rs. 695.11 million (2016: Rs. 398.50 million) and net assets of the Fund would increase / decrease by the same amount, as
a result of gains / losses on the investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss If the counterparties fall to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk mainly arises from
deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure arising as a result of dividend receivable (If any) on units of mutual
funds.

Management of credit risk

For banks and financial institutions, the Fund keeps deposits with reputed financial institutions with reasonably high credit ratings. Credit
risk on account of dividend receivable is minimal due to the statutory protections. Further, all transactions in Fund are executed only in
underlying funds, thus the risk of default is considered to be minimal. The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of the NBFC rules and the
regulations and the guidelines given by the SECP from time to time.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering any collateral as at June 30, 2017 is the carrying amount of the financial
assets. None of these assets are impaired nor past due but not impaired.
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47.2.1 The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Bank with which the Fund's financial assets are kept in deposit accounts as at

17.3

June 30, 2017:

Bank balances by rating category 2017

Al-Ameen  Al-Ameen  Al-Ameen Al-Ameen Al-Ameen Al-Ameen

Latest available Ratin lslamic islamic Islamic Islamic Islamic Islamic
Mame of bank published rating as a encg Active Active Active Active Active Active Total
at June 30, 2017 gency Allocation  Aliocation Allocation Allocation  Allocation Allocation
Plan< Plan-i Plan-if Plan-iV PlandV Plan-iv
{Rup in "000)
United Bank Limited AAA JCOR-VIS 6,296 49,083 6,977 17,764 27,555 18,138 125,813
2016
Al-Ameen Al-Ameen  Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Latest available Ratin Islamic Islamic Islamic Islamic
Name of bank published rating as at agen 9 Active Active Active Active - - Total
June 30, 2016 gency Aliocation  Allocation  Aliocaion  Allocation
Plan-i Plan-ll Plan-ili Plan-IV
{Rupees in "000)
United Bank Limited AA+ JCR-VIS 9,219 55,179 10,854 38,231 - - 113,483

The Fund's major bank balance is held with a single bank (related party). The management believes that the bank is a reputed
institution.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or where
a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. The management believes that underlying assets held by these funds are sufficiently diverse and therefore
do not expose the Fund to any major concentration risk.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset or such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed fo non-payment of redemption requests on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the option of unit holders
based on the plan’s net asset value per unit, at the time of redemption, calculated in accordance with the Funds' / plans constitutive
documents and guidelines laid down by the SECP.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to

meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Fund's reputation. The Fund's policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market
and can be readily realised.

In order fo manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the option to withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten
percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next
business day. Such procedure would continue uniil the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the
units then in issue. Further, the Fund also has the ability to suspend redemptions of units with the approval of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company in extraordinary circumstances. The Fund can also borrow, with prior approval of the Trustee, for meeting
redemption requests. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of total net assets at
the time of borrowing with repayment within 80 days of such borrowings. No such borrowings were made during the year.

The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the confractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Particulars

Liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Liabitities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
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As at June 30, 2017

As at June 30, 2016

Up to three months

Up to three months

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1

455 1,483
169 198

20 168
644 1,860

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - i

514 1,523
227 205
3,793 56
4,534 1,784

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - lli

310 800
149 130
19,494 52
198,853 982

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV

291 360

135 118
20,785 10,285
21,211 10,763
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Particulars
As at June 30, 2017 As at June 30, 2016

Up to three months  Up to three months

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V

Liabiiities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 415 -

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 188 -

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 44,795 -
45,398 -

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI

Liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 446 -

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 201 -

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 48,873 -

49,520 -

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount of net assets
attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance and redemptions at the
discretion of unit holders. These unit holders of the Fund are entitled to distributions and to payment of a proportionate share based on
the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit
holders’ fund.

The Fund’s objective when managing unit holders’ fund is o safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in order o
provide returns for the benefits of the unit holders to maintain a strong base of assets to support the development of the investment
activities of the Fund and o meet unexpected losses or opportunities. As required under the NBFC Regulations, every open end
scheme shall maintain minimum fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the life of scheme. In order
fo comply with the requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund, the Fund’s policy is to perform the following:

- Monitor the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of distributions the Fund
pays fo the unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's ability to restrict
redemptions; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer critically track the movement of ‘Assets
under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated regarding key performance indicators e.g. yield and movement of NAV
and fotal Fund size at the end of each quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current year.
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18.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to
curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a fransaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date. The
estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different from the carrying value as the
items are short-term in nature.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Fair value measurements using Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The table below provides information on financial assets or liabilities re-measured and carried at fair values, by valuation msthods.

As at June
As at June 30, 2017 30, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Total

Rupees in 000
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 3,043,112 = = 3,043,112 2,522,441

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - I

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 2,775,260 - - 2,775,260 2,568,405

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Iii

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 1,765,371 - - 1,765,371 1,533,497

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 1,561,226 - - 1,561,226 1,344,607

Al-Ameaen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 2,287,263 - - 2,287,263 -

Al-Amaen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Vi

Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - held for trading 2,469,916 - - 2,469,916 -

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
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201

21,

BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of the members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follows:

S. No. Name Designation Experience in years Qualification
1 Mr. Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 17 MBA
2  Mr. Syed Suleman Akhtar Chief Investment Officer 18 CFA
3 Mr. Farhan Bashir Khan Head of Research 11 MBA
4 Mr. Syed Shabbir Sardar Zaidi  Fund Manager 8 CFA

Mr. Shabbir Sardar Zaidi is also Fund Manager of Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Fund, Al-Ameen
Dedicated Equity Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund Il, Al-Ameen Islamic Retirement Saving Fund and UBL Gold

Fund.

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

Category

Iindividuals

Associated companies and directors
Insurance companies

Retirement funds

Public limited companies

Others

Individuals

Insurance companies
Retirement funds

Public limited companies
Others

Individuals

Associated companies and directors
Insurance companies

Retirement funds

Public limited companies

Others

............ As at June 22, 2017

----- As at June 30, 2016 ——--mwomonen

Number of Percentage Percen

. Number of . 9 Number of Number of ercentage
unit —nitshetd  °TUM  nitholders units held of

holders held units held
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1

1,007 18,173,216 81.51 1,006 14,341,489 61.69%

1 1,407,548 4.76 2 1,022,990 4.40%

- - - 1 48,804 0.21%

36 5,957,065 20.16 30 4,320,715 18.58%

1 - - 11 1,733,531 7.46%

18 4,007,500 13.56 ] 1,781,363 7.66%

1,063 29,545,330 100.00 1,059 23,248,982 100%

............ As at June 30, 2017

----- As at June 30, 2016 ———-mmmmememe

Numbfar of Number of Percen:tage Number of Number of Percentage
unit  nitsheld  °TYMS  nitholders  units held of
holders held units held

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - i

851 14,861,011 71.36 916 16,687,536 70.16%

1 97,850 0.47 1 97,721 0.41%

22 3,785,760 18.06 26 4,820,020 20.27%

3 1,706,466 8.14 4 1,724,528 7.25%

Q9 413,420 1.97 2] 454,730 1.91%

886 20,964,506 100.00 956 23,784,535 100%
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - il

584 7,651,995 56.38 818 8,405,159 58.40%

1,126,245 8.30 2 1,112,089 7.73%

1 396,329 2.92 1 392,032 2.72%

19 2,107,874 15.53 19 2,084,761 14.48%

3 346,029 2.55 5 929,074 6.45%

3 1,944,418 14.33 1 1,470,119 10.21%

612 13,572,891 100.00 648 14,393,244 100%
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221

222

223

22.4

Number of Percentage
Category . Number of . g Number of Number of Percentage
unit units held of units unit holders units held of
hoiders held units held
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - IV
Individuals 502 8,088,221 66.21 537 8,813,583 68.04%
Associated companies and directors 4 1,144,311 9.37 4 1,158,101 8.94%
Insurance companies 1 49,300 0.40 1 49,300 0.38%
Retirement funds 8 968,918 7.93 9 968,102 7.47%
Public limited companies = - - 1 29,295 0.23%
Others 6 1,965,024 16.09 6 1,936,035 14.94%
522 12,215,775 100.00 558 12,954,416 100%
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V
Individuals 853 12,412,250 62.22 - - -
Associated companies and directors 4 1,043,100 5.23 - - -
Retirement funds 18 3,027,617 15.18 - - -
Public limited companies 4 2,116,401 10.61 - - -
Others 8 1,350,215 8.77 B - -
887 19,949,582 100.00 - - -
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - Vi
Individuals 1,214 18,759,909 81.55 - - -
Associated companies and directors 1 1,023,267 4.45 - - -
Insurance companies 1 150,874 0.66 - - -
Retirement funds 18 1,291,875 5.62 - - -
Public limited companies 4 691,526 3.01 - - -
Others i1 1,086,889 4.72 - - -
1,249 23,004,340 100.00 - - -

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of the Management Company), UBL Fund
Managers Limited (Management Company), Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Services (Private) Limited (Subsidiary of the Management
Company), entities under common management or directorships, the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee) and

the Directors and Officers of the Management Company.

Transactions with the connected persons are in the normal course of business, at agreed / contracted rates.

Remuneration of the Management Company is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC Regulations and the Trust

Deed.

Remuneration of the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

Details of transactions with related parties / connected persons and balances held with them including transactions and balances

involving related parties at the year / period end are as follows:
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Associated Funds under | Dirsctors and| connected
. Management .
Particulars Company Companies Trustee Common Key persons/
and others* Management | Executives™ related
parties™*
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1
Transactions during the perlod Period ended June 22, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units issued - - - - - -
Units redeemed - - - - 5 -
Bonus Units - 389 - - - 374
{Rupees in "000)
Profit on savings accounts - 531 - - - -
Bank charges B 5 - - “ -
Allocated expenses 2,724 - - - - -
Shariyah advisor fee 56 - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - - - -
investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - - 607 -
Remuneration - - 2,585 - - -
Dividend received - - - - - -
Dividend paid - - - - - -
Balances held - unsecured
As at June 22, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units held . 1,408 N N M
(Rupees in "000)
Value of units held - 142,349 - - - -
Bank balances - §,286 - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - 3,043,112 - - - -
Remuneration payable - - 168 - - -
Allocated expense payable 437 - - - - -
Shariyah Advisor fee payable 3 - - N M -
Profit receivable - 23 - - - -
Other payable 15 - - - - -
Year ended June 30, 2016
{Units in "000)
Transactions during the period
Units issued - 18 - - - -
Units redeemed - - - - 9 -
{Rupees in '000)
Profit on savings accounts - 1,076 - - - -
Bank charges - 17 - - -
Allocated expanses 1,426 - - - - .
Shariyah advisor fee 52 - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - 4,568,674 - -
investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - 4,585,167 - -
Remuneration - - 2,314 - - -
Dividend received - - - 38,885 - -
Dividend paid - 1,509 - - 7 -
Balances held - unsecured As at June 30, 2016
{Units in "000)
Units held - 1,018 - - 5 -
{Rupess in '000)
Value of units held - 110,158 - - 541 -
Bank balances - 9,219 - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - - - 2,522,441 - -
Remuneration payable - - 199 - - .
Allocated expenses payable 1,426 - - - - -
Shariah Advisor fee payable 52 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 183 - - - -
Other Payable 15 - - - - -
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Associated Funds under | Directors and | connecied
. Management .
Particulars Compan Companles Trustee Common Key persons/
pany and others® Management | Executives™ related
parties™*
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -1l
Transactions during the year Year ended June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units issued = - - - - -
Units redeermed - - - - - -
(Rupees in "000)
Profit on savings accounts B 3,196 - .. - M
Bank charges - 4 - - - -
Allocated expenses 2,902 = - - - -
Shariyah advisor fee 62 - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - “ - M
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - - - .
Remuneration - - 2,742 - - -
Dividend received - - - 73,946 - -
Dividend paid B N - N - 585
Balances held - unsecurad
As at June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units held - - n - - 2,913
{Rupees In '000)
Value of units held - - - - - 387,953
Bank balances N 49,083 B - - w
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - - - 2,775,260 - -
Remuneration payable - - 227 - - -
Allocated expense payable 505 - - - - -
Sharlyah Advisor fee payable 9 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 522 - - - -
QOther payable - - - - - -
Year ended June 30, 2016
Transactions during the year {Units in "000)
Units issued - - - - - 2,913
Units redeerned - - - - - -
(Rupees in '000)
Profit on savings accounts - 3,973 - - - -
Bank charges - 5 - - - -
Allocated expenses 1,471 - - - - -
Shariyah advisor fee 51 - - - - -
Investrment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - 6,926,068 - -
investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - 4,585,539 - -
Remuneration - - 1,801 - - -
Dividend received - - - 37,896 - -
Dividend paid - - - - - 5,025
Balances held - unsecured
As at June 30, 2016
{Units in "000)
Units held - - - - - 2,913
{Rupees in '000)
Value of units held - - - - - 319,177
Bank balances - 55,179 - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - - - 2,569,405 - -
Remuneration payable - - 205 - - -
Allocated expenses payable 1,471 - - - - -
Shariah Advisor fee payable 51 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 111 - - - -
Other payable - - . - . -
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Particulars

Management

Associated
P .

C

P

w

and others™

Trustee

Funds under
Common
Management

Directors and
Key
Executives™

Other
connected
persons/
related
parties™*

Transactions during the year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Profit on savings accounts

Bank charges

Allocated expenses

Shariyah advisor fee

Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units
Remuneration

Dividend received

Dividend paid

Balances held - unsecured

Units held

Value of units held

Bank balances

Investment in mutual funds - Units held
Remuneration payable

Allocated expense payable

Shariyah Advisor fee payable

Profit receivable

Other payable

Transactions during the year

Units issued
Units redesemed

Profit on savings accounts

Bank charges

Allocated expenses

Shariyah advisor fee

Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units
Remuneration

Dividend received

Dividend paid

Balances held - unsecured

Units held

Value of units held

Bank balances

Investment in mutual funds - Units held
Remuneration payable

Allocated expenses payable

Shariah Advisor fee payable

Profit receivable

Other payable

el S Bageli

Allogation Plan - il

1,742

1,780

1,112

-Yoar snded June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)

{Rupees in "000)

As at June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)

1,470

142,013
6,977

38

(Ruy

1,112

759

As at June 30, 2016

1,112

86

(Units in '000)

{Rupees in '000)

(Units in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

in "000}

1,765,371

For the period from December 23, 2015 to June 30, 2016

187,733

3,628,762
2,189,048

25,150

1,470

1,533,497
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Management Associated Funds under | Directors and | connected
Particulars Con? an Companles Trustes Common Key persons/
pany and others® Management | Executives™ related
parties™*
Al-A Islamic Active All tion Plan - IV
Transactions during the vear Year ended June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units Issued - - - - - -
Units redeemed - - - - 15 -
{Rupees in "000)
Profit on savings accounts N 1,529 - - - n
Bank charges - 3 - - - -
Allocated expenses 1,550 - - - - -
Shariyah advisor fee 64 - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - - 1,821 -
Remuneration - - 1,596 - - -
Dividend received - - - 41,422 - -
Dividend paid - 1,933 . - 241 2,838
Balances held - unsecurad
As at June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)
Units held - 1,017 - - 127 1,484
{Rup in ‘000)
Value of units held - 128,232 - - 16,013 188,376
Bank balances N 17,764 - - - n
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - - - 1,561,226 - -
Remuneration payable - - 135 - - -
Allocated expense payable 278 - - - - -
Shariyah Advisor fee payable 10 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 78 - - - -
Other payable 5 - - - - -
e —Faor the period from March 29, 2015 to June 30, 2016 ——————moemeemv
Transactions during the year {Units in "000)
Units issued - 1,017 - - 142 1,484
Units redeemed - - - - - -
{Rupees in '000)
Profit on savings accounts - 2,132 - - - -
Bank charges - 1 - - - -
Allocated expenses 340 - - - - -
Shariyah advisor fee 18 - - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - purchase of units - - - 2,112,033 - -
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units - - - 837,302 - -
Remuneration - - 364 - - -
Dividend received - - - 19,891 - -
Dividend paid - 1,751 - - 244 2,574
Balances held - unsecured
As at June 30, 2016
{Units in "000)
Units held - 1,017 - - 142 1,494
{Rupees in '000)
Vailue of units held - 107,180 - - 14,958 157,378
Bank balances - 38,231 - - - -
Investment in mutual funds - Units held - - - 1,344,607 - -
Remuneration payable - - 118 - - -
Allocated expenses payable 340 - - - - -
Shariah Advisor fee payable 18 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 183 - - - -

Other payable - - - - - -
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Particulars

A Loadengd

Company

Companies
and others™

Trustee

Funds under
Common

Directors and
Key

Other
connected
persons/

Eop gl

Executives™

¥
parties™*

Transactions during the year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Profit on savings accounts
Bank charges

Allocated expenses
Shariyah advisor fees

investment in mutual funds - purchase of uniis
Investment in mutual funds - redemption of units

Remuneration
Dividend received
Dividend paid

Balances held - unsacured

Units held

Value of units held

Bank balances

Investment in mutual funds - Units held
Remuneration payable

Allocated expense payable

Shariyah Advisor fee payable

Profit receivable

Other payable

Transactions during the year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Profit on savings accounts
Bank charges

Allocated expenses
Shariyah advisor fees

Investrnent in mutual funds - purchase of units
investment in mutual funds - redemption of units

Remuneration
Dividend received
Dividend paid

Balances held - unsecursd

Units held

Value of units held

Bank balances

Investment in mutual funds - Units held
Remuneration payable

Allocated expenses payable

Shariah Advisor fee payable

Profit receivable

Other payable

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -V

Year ended June 30, 2017

1,001

]

5121
]

100,056

2,501

1,001

(Units in '000)

{Rupees In '000)

As at June 30, 2017
{Units in "000)

43

2,915

100,098

7,287

43

ar6

113,172
27,555

ARUp

in '000)

2,287,283

4,862

110,346

Al-Ameen Islamic Actlve Allocation Plan - VI

Year ended June 30, 2017

1

578

As at June 30, 2017

1,001

88

105,623
18,138

201

{Units in '000)

{Rupees in '000)

{Units in "000)

{Rupees in '000)

591

591

2,469,916




o

e

* This represents parent (including the related subsidiaries of the parent) of the Management Company, associated companies /
undertakings of the Management Company.

¥

These include transactions and balance in relation to those directors and key executives that existed as at year end. However, it does
not include the transactions and balances whereby director and key executive has resigned from the management company during the
year

#*

This represents the person having 10% or more holding in each period.

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held. The details of the attendance are as
under:

August25, | October28, | December06, | February 13, | March 20, April 11, Total
2018 2016 2018 2017 2017 2017 meetings
attended

Directors:
Tarig Kirmani 4 v v 4 v v 6
Yasir Qadri (CEQO) 4 4 v v v v 6
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi v v v v v v 6
Zia ljaz v x v x % x 2
Syed Fumrukh Zaeem v v v v v v 6
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas v v v v * v 5
Zulfigar Alavi v v 4 % v v 5
Key Executives:
Hasnain R Nensey * v v v x x x 3
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui v v v v v v 6
Umair Ahmed v v v v v v 6

“Resigned on Feb 28, 2017

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2017 and as at June 30, 2016.

COMMITTED CREDIT LINES

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Direction No. 2 of 2017 dated January 13, 2017, has directed all Asset
Management Companies to arrange committed credit lines from banks / DFls for the equity funds and fund of funds equivalent to 10%
of its net assets and to review it at least on quarterly basis against net assets of the funds. Accordingly, the Fund has obtained
committed credit lines of PKR 2,164 million which represents 15.75% of net asset of the Fund as at June 30, 2017 atarate of 3
months KIBOR plus 2%.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 23, 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company.

FOR UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund - II
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII - VIII

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

AIFPF-II is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment
as per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the
risk tolerance of the Investor.

Management Company UBL Fund Managers Limited

Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi. Tel: (9221) 111-111-500

Distribution Company United Bank Limited
(for detail of others, please visit our website:
www.ublfunds.com.pk)

Auditors BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountant

Bankers United Bank Limited

Management Co. Rating AM2++ (JCR-VIS)
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Fund Manager's Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund - II
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-VII (AlActAP-VII)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF-Il is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment as per the
respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the risk tolerance of the
Investor.

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims to provide capital protection at completion of the duration; the
performance so far till end June'17 reflects that the fund is on frack to achieve its stated objective of earning
potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value.

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by MUFAP, 6M
PKISRYV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared with the
said benchmarks

[: p'l6 Oct'16 Nov'l6 Dec'l6 Jan'l7 Feb'l7 Mar'l7 Ap 17 Jun'l7  FYTD
AIACtAP-VII = - - - - - - 0.11%  012%  2.03%  2.58%  -6.30% -191%
Benchmark = - - - - - - 017%  -123%  224%  275%  -7.25%  -3.93%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the
Collective Investment Scheme's performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -Vll is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic
Financial Planning Fund - II" with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active asset allocation
between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager's outlook on the asset classes. The
fund was launched on 21-Feb-2017 and has posted an absolute return of -1.91% against the benchmark refurn of
-3.93% since inception.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme's asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-16 Jun-17
Equity Funds - 51%
Money Market Funds - 0%
Income Funds - 48%
Others - 0%
Cash - 2%
Leverage - Nil
Total - 100%
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vi) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: -1.91%
Standard Deviation {12m trailing): N/A
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): N/A
vii) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement {in case of

newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 Change 30-Jun-17 l 30-Jun-16 Change
Rupees {000) % Rupees %
2,250,469 | - N/a 98.0880 | - N/a

viii) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including
= raview of the market{s) invested in and returns during the period
The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund-iI” that actively
invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund Manager's outlool on the
asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of AIFPF-AIACTAP-VII are equity and money-market CIS and the
market reviews are as follows:

Debt Market Review ~ FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel. Historically
low oil prices along with stable commaodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check at 4.1% as compared to
2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE which is somewhat sticky in nature
increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking cues from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep
the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the vear, the government raised PKR869.3 billion (PKR 928 billion in FY18) against target
of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five year paper with the participation ratio
of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%, 6.90% and 7.94% for three, five and ten year PIB
instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3 Year, 5 Year and
10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills
(6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.
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Stock Market Review — FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000 points touching
its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on infrastructural development under
PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the MSCI-EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand
ground as market subdued due fo uncertainty relating to MSCI related flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets
followed by high political uncertainty surrounding Panama Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below
its peak, registering a return of 23% on FYTD basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parls,
Utilities and Oil Exploration Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement in
product margins.

in the Investor Porifolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 652mn. Despite
inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow. However, improving domestic
economic prospects along with aftractive valuations helped the index gain stability. The mutual fund industry remained on the
forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and depicting confidence in fundamental strength of Pakistan's
equity market.

During the vear, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments faking place under the China Pakistan
Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped fo improve frade balance. The boom in
infrastructure development fueled dernand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to appreciation of price levels of companies
in the respective seclors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic fundamentals,
attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the CPEC project. Meanwhile,
growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per capita income will continue to generate interest
in cyclical industries.

ix) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the period;
and - statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution Is made

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash Per Unit Cum NAV | Ex NAY
Rupees (000) Rupees
Nia Nia | Na Nia Na | Na
x) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective Investment

Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager's report, not otherwise disclosed in the
financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.
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xi) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Range of Units Number of Investors
AIACTAP-VII

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 956
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 253
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 53
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 Ky
500,000.0000 & Above 4

Total 1,297

xii) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-

There were no unit splits during the period.

xiii) Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

Xiv) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission {i.e.
goods and services) from Its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Collective
Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of fransactions conducted by
the Collective Investment Scheme.
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Fund Manager’s Report — Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund - Il
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-Vil (AlActAP-VIII)

iii)

v)

vi)

Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Islamic Fund of Funds Scheme / Open-end

Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective

AIFPF-Il is an Open-end Shariah Compliant Fund of funds that aims to generate returns on Investment
as per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds in line with the
risk tolerance of the Investor.

Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective

The Collective Investment Scheme aims fo provide capital protection at completion of the duration; the
performance so far till end June’17 reflects that the fund is on track to achieve its stated objective of
earning potentially high returns while providing capital preservation of the initial investment value.

Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
Weighted Avg. of 3M average deposit rates of 3 AA rated islamic banks/windows as selected by
MUFAP, 6M PKISRV rates and KMI-30 Index on basis of actual investment by the active allocation plan

Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme's performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l6 Aug'l6é Sep'ls Mar'l7 Apr'l7 May'l7 Jun'l7  FYTD
AIACtAP-VIII - - - 0.30% -342% -3.13%
Benchmark - - - - - - - - - - -093% -452% -5.41%

Oct'l6 Nov'l6 Dec'l6 Jan'l7 Feb'17

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The “Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan -VIIl is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Planning Fund - II” with an objective to earn a potentially high return through active
asset allocation between Islamic Equities and Islamic Income based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on
the asset classes. The fund was launched on 30-May-2017 and has posted an absolute return of -
3.13% against the benchmark return of -5.41% since inception.

Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report
and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)
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Asset Allocation (% of Total Jun-16  Jun-17

Assets)

Equity Funds - 35%
Money Market Funds - 0%
Income Funds - 64%
Others - 0%
Cash - 0%
Leverage - Nil
Total - 100%

vii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'17 Return: -3.13%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): N/A
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): N/A

vii)  Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in
case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change | 30-Jun-17 | 30-Jun-16 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
4,994,943 | - N/a| 96.8685 | - N/a

ix) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including
- review of the market(s) invested in and returns during the period
The fund is an Islamic Allocation Plan under the “Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund-II” that
actively invests between Islamic Equities and Islamic Money Market/ Income based on the Fund
Manager's outiook on the asset classes. Thus, the underlying assets of AIFPF-AIACTAP-VIII are equity
and money-market CIS and the market reviews are as follows:
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Debt Market Review — FY17

The International Crude Oil prices oscillated between USD 40 to 55 per barrel and closed the year at USD 46/barrel.
Historically low oil prices along with stable commodity prices and exchange rate helped keep inflation under check at
4.1% as compared to 2.9% last year. Core measures of inflation witnessed a slight upward trajectory where NFNE
which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to 5.5% compared to 4.6% posted in same period last year. Taking cues
from lower inflation, the SBP decided to keep the policy rate at 5.75%.

In twelve PIB auctions conducted during the year, the govemment raised PKR869.3 hillion (PKR 928 billion in FY16)
against target of PKR 800 billion. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five year paper
with the participation ratio of 60% and 26% respectively. Cut off yields in June auction were 6.41%, 6.90% and 7.94%
for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively.

The yield curve shifted upwards during FY17. Since the start of the fiscal year the secondary market yields for 3 Year,
5 Year and 10 Year PIB have come up by ~40bps, ~46bps and ~50bps respectively. The spread between annualized
yields of 1-year T-bills (6.04% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (8.17% p.a.) stood at 2.13% as of 30 June 2017.

Stock Market Review - FY17

During the year, the KSE-100 Index crossed the landmark of 50,000 points. The stock market gained over 15,000
points touching its peak of 52,876 points. The main reasons for this strong rally were increased spending on
infrastructural development under PSDP and CPEC related activities along with the inclusion of PSX into the MSCI-
EM Index. However, the bull rally could not stand ground as market subdued due to uncertainty relating to MSCl related
flows, discouraging taxation regime for the capital markets followed by high political uncertainty surrounding Panama
Case. The market eventually closed at 46,565 points, 5000 points below its peak, registering a return of 23% on FYTD
basis. The sectors which outperformed include Engineering, Automobile & Parts, Utilities and Oil Exploration
Companies and Consumer Sector on account of increase in consumer demand and improvement in product margins.

In the Investor Portfolio, local investors remained net-buyers for FY17 absorbing the foreign selling of around USD
652mn. Despite inclusion into the MSCI-EM index inflows remained shy as compared to the incurred outflow. However,
improving domestic economic prospects along with attractive valuations helped the index gain stability. The mutual
fund industry remained on the forefront for absorbing the foreign selling of around USD 576mn and depicting confidence
in fundamental strength of Pakistan’s equity market.

During the year, the market was also driven upwards by the ongoing developments taking place under the China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). Stable oil prices kept inflation under control and helped to improve trade balance.
The boom in infrastructure development fueled demand of Steel, Autos, Cement and Glass leading to appreciation of
price levels of companies in the respective sectors.

Going forward, we expect the market to continue on its bull drive with our view premised on strong macroeconomic
fundamentals, attractive stock valuations; robust corporate earnings growth and ongoing investments under the CPEC
project. Meanwhile, growing consumer demand due to low interest rate environment and increasing per capita income
will continue to generate interest in cyclical industries.
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x) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made
Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus | Cash | PerUnit | CumNAV | ExNAV
Rupees (000) |  sesosssccscms L R —
Nfa Nia | Nfa N/a | Nfa | N/a
Xi) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in state of affairs of the scheme.
xii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size
Number of Investors
R f Uni
ange of Units AICTAP-VII
0.0001 - 9,999.9999 1,890
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 696
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 106
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 66
500,000.0000 & Above 6
Total 2,764
xiii)y  Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.
xiv)  Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.
xv) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft

commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of fransactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-Vil

2017

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 2,250,469
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees
Class A units - Offer 161.4132

- Redemption 98.0880
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund (1.91)
Capital Growth (per unit) {1.91)
Date of Income Distribution 30-Jun-17
Income Distribution ~
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since Launcl/ One Year -1.91
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 116.12
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 106.51
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 99.35
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 96.09
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances 2.00
income funds 48.00
Equity Funds 51.00
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Mutual Funds 101

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 21 Feb 2017.

DISCLAIMER

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go
down, as well as up.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan-Vill

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees

Class A units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund
Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
Since Launch/ One Year
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees

Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank balances

income funds

Equity Funds

OTHERS

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Mutual Funds

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 30 MAY 2017.

DISCLAIMER

2017

4,994,943

100.1523
96.8685

(3.13)
(3.13)
30-Jun-17

-3.13

103.93
160.52

98.68
95.45

0.00 0.00
64.00 64.00
35.00 35.00

1.00 1.00

100 100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go

down, as well as up.
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ITRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND -1

Report of the Trustee pursunnt to Regulation 410k} and clause 9 of Schedule V af the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notificd Eatities Regulations, 2008

Al-Ameen Istsmic Financial Planning Fund - Il {the Fund) are of the opnien that UBL

Fund Managers Limited bepng the Management Company of the Fund has in all materlal

respects ehanaged the Fund during  the year ended June 30, 2017 0 sccordumc

with the provisions of the following;

{1y Limitations imposed on the mvesimen powers of the Managoment Company under the
comnstitutive documents of (ve Fund;

We Ceiral Pepossiory Company of Pakistssn  Limited, beng the Trustes of

{uh he pricing, muance and redemption of umis sre carrled out m accordance with the
reguiremients of the conpstitutive documends of the Fund; and

dLid) Ihe Mon-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Fipance Companies wnd Neaficd Entities  Regulations, 2008 und the
comsittulive documents of the Fund

Gp——1

Aftab Abmed Diwan
Cheef Executive CHficer
Cixitral Depository Company of Pakisisn Limited

Barachi: Seplember 25, 2017

=o'y -
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company’s personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AIFPF-II- AIACtAP-VIl in
light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AIFPF-II-
AlActAP-VII by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with the
criteria established.

. On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-II-
AIActAP-VII for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.

During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our

mistakes.

@
Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHI:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE

We, the Shariah Advisors of the fund are issuing this report in accordance with the rules and
regulations. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the
Funds activities.

In the capacity of Shariah Advisors, we have prescribed criteria and procedures to be followed in
ensuring Shariah Compliance in every investment.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the fund to establish and maintain a system
of internal controls to ensure compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion, based on our review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company’s personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the prescribed
criteria.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that:

i We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of AIFPF-II- AIActAP-VIII
in light of the shariah guidelines.

. All the provisions of the Scheme and investments made on account of AIFPF-II-
AIActAP-VIII by UBL Fund Managers are Shariah compliant and in accordance with
the criteria established.

. On the basis of information provided by the management, all operations of AIFPF-II-
AIActAP-VIII for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been in compliance with the
Shariah principles.

During the year, PKR Nil amount has been recognized as charity.

May Allah give us strength to work in accordance with Quran and Sunnah and forgive our

mistakes.

2
Mufti Muhammad Hassaan Kaleem Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan
Member, Shariah Advisory Committee Member, Shariah Advisory Committee
KARACHI:

DATE: 22 July 2017
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED WITH THE BEST
PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the “Code”), contained
in Chapter 5 (clause 5.19.24) of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance, whereby, a listed entity is managed in compliance with the
best practices of Corporate Governance.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of UBL Fund Managers Limited (the “Management Company”),
which is an unlisted public company, manages the affairs of Al Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund —
II (the “Fund”). The Fund being a unit trust open end scheme does not have its own Board of Directors. The
units of the Fund are listed as a security on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited; therefore, the Management
Company has applied the principles contained in the Code to the Fund in the following manner:

01. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors. All
the directors except the Chief Executive Officer of the Management Company are non-executive
directors, two of whom are independent non-executive directors.

Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Tariq Kirmani
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri
Non - Executive Directors Mr. Zia ljaz
Mr. Zulfigar Alavi
Syed Furrukh Zaeem
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under regulation 5.19.1(b) of the Rule Book
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

02. The existing directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven
listed companies, including the Management Company.

03. All the resident directors of the Management Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them
has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a Broker of
a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

04. No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.

05. The Management Company has prepared a 'Code of Conduct' and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Management Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.
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06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies for the Fund. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which these were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
of the CEO have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in
every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were
circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

In order to apprise the directors on their duties and responsibilities and the requirements of the Code,
the Management Company has a process in place to conduct formal orientations for new directors.
Furthermore, five directors on the Board have completed the Director Training Program (DTP) and
are certified directors, while two Independent directors are exempt from the DTP under the Code of
Corporate Governance 2012. The directors are well conversant with the relevant laws applicable to
the Fund and the Management Company, its policies and procedures and provisions of memorandum
and articles of association and are aware of their duties and responsibilities.

There was no appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year.

The Directors' report relating to the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2017 has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed.

The financial statements of the Fund were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO of the Management
Company before approval of the Board.

The Directors, CEO, and executives do not hold any interest in the units of the Fund other than that
being disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

The Management Company has complied with all the applicable corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the Code.

The Board has formed a Board Audit Committee which comprises of five members, all of whom are
non-executive directors including the chairman of the Committee who is an independent non-
executive director.

The meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held, at least, once in every quarter and prior to
the approval of interim and final results of the Fund as required by the Code. The terms of reference
have been approved in the meeting of the Board of Directors and the Committee has been advised to
ensure compliance with those terms of reference.
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17. The Management Company has an in-house internal audit function. The internal audit team is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Fund and they are involved in the internal audit function on a full time basis.

18. The Board has formed a Human Resource and Compensation Committee. It comprises of four
members, of whom three are non-executive directors, one is an executive director and the chairman
of the Committee is an independent non- executive director.

19. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Management Company or units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The 'closed period', prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which
may materially affect the market price of Fund's securities, was determined and intimated to
directors, employees and stock exchange.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once
through stock exchange.

23. The Management Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register
of persons having access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely
manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons
from the said list.

24. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

YASIR QADRI Karachi.
Chief Executive Dated: August 23, 2017
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST
PRACTICES CONTAINED IN THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of UBL Fund Managers
Limited, the Management Company of AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND Il (“the
Fund”) for the period ended June 30, 2017 to comply with the requirements of Regulation No, 5.19
of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Fund is listed,

The responsibility for compliance with the Code s that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be
objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Management
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review s limited primarily to inquiries of the
Management Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Management
Company to comply with the Code,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal

controls, the Management Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related

party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the

Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management Company’s compliance, in
all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Fund for

the period ended June 30, 2017,

N~

KARACHI ﬂ[\ v —
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATED: AUGUST 23, 2017 p~ Engagement partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants i i
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Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 Znd Fioos, Block-C
Fax; +92 11 3568 4239 Lakion Square, Bufiding No.1
wiwrw, Bdo, com, pi Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-T4200
Fakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning
Fund 11 ("the Fund™), which comprise of the statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2017
and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, distribution statement, cash flow
statement and statement of movement in unit holders’ fund for the period ended June 30, 2017
and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management Company's responsibility for the financial statements

The Management Company (“UBL Fund Managers Limited™) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Trust Deed, the MNon-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financlal statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financlal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, either
due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basks for our audit opinion.

8D0 Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BO0 Chvatve & (., o Palusien regribeed sartaerileg frm, o o sermbet of B30 eternabionat Lisited, » UM comaasy trbpd by futrarsee.
andl fairra Sart &F the iSlivradioral BOO retwort of degamdent ssavrber N,
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IBDO

Opinion

In our apinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs
as at June 30, 2017 and of its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the pericd

ended June 30, 2017 in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Other matters

in our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NBFC Regulations.

KARACHI Q\ o, S

DATED: 2 3 AUG 2017 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

P00 Ervabem B Co . & PRhnien regesiessd PATAenp fum, m a member of BOO isternationdl LIS, & UR (omdity 1aeles By b snces
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND -II
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2017 2017
Al-Ameen Islamic || Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Active Allocation Total
Plan VII Plan VII
Note (Rupees in '000)

ASSETS

Bank balances 5 39,968 10,471 50,439

Investments 6 2,233,114 5,000,993 7,234,107

Profit receivable 7 177 354 531

Prepayments and other receivables 8 473 1,043 1,516

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 9 3,523 - 3,523
TOTAL ASSETS 2,277,255 5,012,861 7,290,116
LIABILITIES

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 10 4,995 11,043 16,038

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 11 184 376 560

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 624 334 958

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13 20,983 6,165 27,148
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,786 17,918 44,704
NET ASSETS 2,250,469 4,994,943 7,245,412
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 2,250,469 4,994,943 7,245,412
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

(Number of URifs) wm s s
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 14 22,943,367 51,564,187 74,507,554
(Rupees)
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT 98.0880 96.86835
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND - IT
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

INCOME
Profit on bank balances

Capital loss on sale of investments - pet
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value
through profit or loss' - net

Dividend income

Other income
Total loss
Expenses

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Auditors’ remuneration
Listing fee

Legal and professional fees

Allocated expenses

Shariah advisory fee

Other expenses
Total expenses

Operating loss for the period
Element of (loss) / income and capital (losses) / gains included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net

Loss for the period before taxation

Taxation

Net loss for the period after taxation

Earnings per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Al-Ameen Islamic Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Active Allocation Total
Plan VII Plan VIII
For the period from || For the period from For the peried
February 21, 2017 to | | May 30, 2017 to June ended June 30,
June 30, 2017 30, 2017 2017
Note (Rupees in '000) -————r—- —_
273 1,990 2,263
(2,545) (35,222) (37,767)
6.1 (76,216) (185,111) (261,327)
37,478 57,662 95,140
681 382 1,063
(40,329) (160,299) (200,628)
806 402 1,208
624 334 958
763 - 763
15 84 84 168
36 - 36
40 40 80
832 445 1,277
113 28 141
93 - 93
3,391 1,333 4,724
(43,720) (161,632) (205,352)
(148) 156 8
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
16 - - -
(43,868) (161.476) (205,344)
17
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




AL~-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND- II
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNK 30, 2017

Al-Ameen Islamic Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Active Allocation Total
Plan-V1I Plan-VIII
For the period For the period For the period
from February 21, | | from May 30, 2017 ended June 30,
2017 to June 30, to June 30, 2017 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Net loss for the period (43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period (43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
{Management Company)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND-TI

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net loss for the period
Undistributed loss carried forward
Undistributed loss carried forward comprising of:

Realised income
Unrealised loss

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Al-Ameen Islamic || Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Active Allocation Total
Plan-VII Plan-VIII
For the period from| |For the period from .
February 21,2017 || May 30, 2017 To eni‘(’; ;:;3;;102‘:)1 ,
To June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 i
(Rupees in '000)
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
32,348 23,635 55,983
(76,216) (185,111) (261,327)
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND - II
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Al-Ameen Islamic Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Plan- Active Allocation Total
Yii Plan-VIII
For the period from For the period from ,
February 21, 2017 To May 30, 2017 To For;‘]:::);;mz(:):gded
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 ?
(Rupees in "000) cmemommmmmmomsn
Net assets at beginning of the period - - -
Issuance of 23,199,385 and 51,986,312 units 2,319,939 5,198,631 7,518,570
Redemption of 256,018 units and 422,125 units {25,750) (42,056) (67,806)
2,294,189 5,156,575 7,450,764
2,294,189 5,156,575 7,450,764
Element of loss / (income) and capital losses / (gains) included in the
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net 148 (156) 8
Capital loss on sale of investments - net (2,545) (35,222) (37,767)
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments - classified as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss' - net (76,216) (185,111) (261,327)
Other income for the period 34,893 58,857 93,750
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
Net assets at end of the period 2,250,469 4,994 943 7,245,412
The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND-II
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss for the period before taxation

Adjustments
Loss on sale of investments - net
Profit on bank balances
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation cost
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' - net

Element of loss / (income) and capital losses / (gains) included in prices

of units issued less those in units redeemed - net

Increase in assets:
Investments
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs
Other receivable

Increase in liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Profit received on bank balances
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units
Payments against redemption of units
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Al-Ameen Islamic Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Active Allocation Total
Plan-VII Plan-VIIL
For the period from || For the period from
February 21,2017 || May 30,2017 To F"'::::;:;:}::dm
To June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 ¥
(Rupees in "000)
(43,868) (161,476) (205,344)
2,545 35,222 37,767
273) (1,950) (2,263)
763 - 763
76,216 185,111 261,327
148 (156) (8)
79,399 218,187 297,586
(2,311,875) (5,221,326) (7,533,201)
(4,286) - (4,286)
(473) (1,043) (1,516)
(2,316,634) (5,222,369) (7,539,003)
4,995 11,043 16,038
184 376 560
624 334 958
20,983 6,165 27,148
26,786 17,918 44,704
(2,254,317) (5,147,740) (7,402,057)
96 1,636 1,732
(2,254,221) (5,146,104) (7,400,325)
2,319,939 5,198,631 7,518,570
(25,750) (42,056) (67,806)
2,294,189 5,156,575 7,450,764
39,968 10,471 50,439
39,968 10,471 50,439

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND- II
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund - II (the Fund) was established under the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the "NBFC Rules") as an open-end
mutual fund. It was constituted under the Trust Deed, dated August 29, 2016 between UBL Fund
Managers Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary company of United Bank Limited) as the Management
Company, a company incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed has also been
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The registered office of
the Management Company is situated at 4th floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines,
Karachi.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered with the SECP as a Non-Banking Finance
Company under the NBFC Rules.

The Fund is an open ended shariah compliant fund of fund scheme and is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The units of Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII and Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII of the Fund were initially offered to public on February 14,
2017 and May 19, 2017 respectively. Subsequent to the Initial Public Offering (IPO), the offer of
units of the allocation plans at the Initial Offer Price is discontinued. The units of the allocation plans
could then be purchased at their offer price and redeemed at the redemption Price, which shall be
calculated on the basis of Net Assets Value (NAV) of each Allocation Plan. The units are
transferable and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of unit holder. The
Fund consists of multiple plans and aims to generate return for investors in line with their risk
tolerance level. The duration of the Fund is perpetual however the allocation plans have a standard
time frame of two years. Each allocation plan announces separate NAVs which rank pari passu inter
se according to its number of units. units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis.

The Fund mainly makes investments in designated authorised investments approved by the Shariah
Advisory Board and offers Shariah Compliant returns to the investors. Under Circular No. 7 dated
March 6, 2009 issued by the SECP, the Fund is categorised as a Shariah Compliant Fund of Funds.
Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of the CDC as the Trustee of the Fund.

Currently, two plans (i.e. Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII and Al-Ameen Islamic
Active Allocation Plan - VIII) have been introduced. The brief description of the plans is as follows:
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1.7

2.1

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII

An Islamic allocation plan with an objective to earn potentially high returns through active asset
allocation between Islamic Equity scheme(s) and Islamic Income scheme(s). The Management
Company actively manages the allocations, from time to time, based on the outlook for the asset-
classes and may invest up to 100% in Islamic Equity, Islamic Income and Islamic Money Market
schemes. The un-invested amounts or funds, if any, shall be kept in cash and / or near cash
instruments where near cash instruments include cash in Islamic Bank and / or Islamic Banking
windows of conventional bank account (excluding TDRs) with rating not lower than AA- (AA
minus) or any other rating allowed by the SECP from time to time.

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII

An Islamic allocation plan with an objective to earn potentially high returns through active asset
allocation between Islamic Equity scheme(s) and Islamic Income scheme(s). The Management
Company actively manages the allocations, from time to time, based on the outlook for the asset-
classes and may invest up to 100% in Islamic Equity, Islamic Income and Islamic Money Market
schemes. The un-invested amounts or funds, if any, shall be kept in cash and / or near cash
instruments where near cash instruments include cash in Islamic Bank and / or Islamic Banking
windows of conventional bank account (excluding TDRs) with rating not lower than AA- (AA
minus) or any other rating allowed by the SECP from time to time.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM2++' (stable outlook)
to the Management Company as at December 30, 2016. The Management Company is obliged to
obtain a rating of the Scheme, once the Scheme becomes eligible for rating as per the criteria of the
rating agency. However, criteria of rating agency requires a minimum performance history of one
year for the funds to become eligible for ranking. Therefore, the fund is not eligible for the rating.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting standards comprise of such International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as
are notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the
NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
"NBFC Regulations") and the directives issued by the SECP.
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In case, the requirements differ, the provisions and directive of Companies Ordinance, 1984, the
requirements of Trust deed, repealed NBFC Rules and NBFC Regulations shall prevail.

During the year, the Companies Act, 2017 was promulgated and enacted on May 30, 2017. However,
SECP has notified through Circular No. 17 dated July 20, 2017 that companies whose financial year
closes on or before June 30, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), hence these financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Ordinance."”

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
investments that are stated at fair values.

These financial statements have been prepared by following accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flows information.

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant
risk of material judgment in the next year are as follows:
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3.1

Classification and valuation of investments
For details please refer notes 4.2 and 20 to these financial statements.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of units issued less
those in units redeemed - net

For details please refer note 4.12 to these financial statements.

Provision for taxation

For details please refer notes 4.9 and 16 to these financial statements.
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

For details please refer note 13.1 to these financial statements.

Other assets

Judgment is involved in assessing the realisability of other assets balances.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Standards or interpretations that are effective in current year but not relevant to the Fund

The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard:
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding
application of the consolidation exception January 1, 2016
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Amendments regarding the accounting for
acquisitions of an interest in a joint operation January 1, 2016
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments regarding

the application of the consolidation exception January 1, 2016
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resulting from

the disclosure initiative January 1, 2016
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments regarding the

clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and

amortisation and amendments bringing bearer plants into the scope

of IAS 16 January 1, 2016
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) - Amendments

reinstating the equity method as an accounting option for

investments in in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in an

entity's separate financial statements January 1, 2016
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments

regarding the application of the consolidation exception January 1, 2016
IAS 38 Intangible Assets - Amendments regarding the clarification of

acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation January 1, 2016
IAS 41 Agriculture - Amendments bringing bearer plants into the scope of

IAS 16 January 1, 2016

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements
made to IFRS that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2012 —2014) Cycle:

IFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Amendments to clarify the classification
and measurement of share-based payment transactions January 1, 2016
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3.3

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the interaction of

IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 1, 2016
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the

sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate Deferred

or joint venture indefinitely
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Amendments resulting from the

disclosure initiative January 1, 2017
IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding the recognition of deferred

tax assets for unrealised losses January 1, 2017
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments

regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and Deferred

its associate or joint venture indefinitely
IAS 40 Investment Property - Amendments to clarify transfers or property

to, or from, investment property January 1, 2018

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 01, 2017 are as follows:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2012 —2014) Cycle:

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 1, 2017
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 1, 2018

Standards or interpretations not yet effective
The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
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4.1

4.2

4.2.1

b)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The effects of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments are still being assessed, as this new standard may have
a significant effect on the Fund’s future financial statements.

The Fund expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will
not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Fund's financial statements in the
period of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the
statement of assets and liabilities at nominal values.

Financial assets

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, at fair value
through profit or loss and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. The management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification on regular basis.

Investments are categorised as follows:

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category.
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4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

b)

Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held to maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time which may be sold in response to the needs for liquidity or change in price.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale’

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and investments
classified as 'available for sale' are valued as follows:

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value and on sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are taken to the 'income statement'.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for sale financial assets are
recognised in unitholders' fund through other comprehensive income until these are derecognised or
impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in unitholders' fund is
shown in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses on these instruments are also recognised in the income statement when the financial
assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.

125



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.3

4.4

4.5

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the financial assets
or a group of financial assets are impaired. The carrying value of the Fund's assets are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The amount of provision for certain debt securities is determined based on the provisioning criteria
specified by the SECP.

For certain other financial assets, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective
evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The
provision against those amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly formulated and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in accordance with the requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
assets and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement

each derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are
regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule
to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its
accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is
distributed to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major
temporary differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax
losses to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. However,
the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of deferred tax in these financial statements as the
Fund intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least ninety
percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or
unrealised, to its unit holders.

Propesed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting
events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such distributions are
declared.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units are allocated at the offer price prevalent on the day on which funds for purchase of units are
realised. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit at the end of the preceding day. Issue
of units is also recorded on realisation of funds.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the Fund receives
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net
asset value per unit at the end of the preceding day. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of
application for redemption.
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4.11

4.12

4.13

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less
those in units redeemed

An equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed’ is created, in order to prevent the dilution of per
unit income and distribution of income already paid out on redemption.

The 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed’ account is credited with the amount representing net income / (loss) and capital
gains / (losses) accounted for in the net asset value and included in the sale proceeds of units. Upon
redemption of units, the 'eclement of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed' account is debited with the amount representing net income
/ (loss) and capital gains / (losses) accounted for in the net asset value and included in the redemption
price.

The 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed' during the year is transferred to the 'income statement'.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is
calculated by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments is accounted for in the year in which it arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the income statement in the year in which it arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as ‘available-for-sale’ is
included in unit holders' fund through other comprehensive income in the year in which it
arises.

- Profit on bank balances and term deposits is recorded on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange rates are recognised in the income
statement.
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4.14

4.15

5.1

6.1

Transactions with related parties / connected persons

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal commercial
rates on the same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provision of NBFC Rules, NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement
of operations of the Fund and include underwriting commission, brokerage paid to the members of
the stock exchange and other expenses. These costs are being amortised over a period of two years
commencing from the date of plan, in accordance with the Trust Deed of the Fund and NBFC
Regulations.

BANK BALANCES
2017
Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Islamic Active Total
Allocation Plan | Allecation Plan oia
Note ViI A% 111
{Rupees in '000)
Profit and loss sharing accounts 39,968 10,471 50,439
Profit rate on this profit and loss sharing account is 5.5% per annum.
INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss - Held-for-trading
Units of Mutual Funds 6.1 2,233,114 5,000,993 7,234,107
Units of Mutual Funds
Opedlag-A850 o ered duc Soid during the  Attheend of the € June 39, Market valn Unrealised Markst valog as  Marlied valuo 25
Neme of Investee Funds ‘”‘;“.‘y‘;’:;’nzl';"’ the peﬁnl:lﬂng n peﬂr:ig * ::ﬂnd ot e 30, privey Gdn:I(l:m) P“""’“‘A‘:f:'““ P;‘f“:;‘:;’
Mo, of holdisgy —————————————— e (P 11 "000)
Al -Ameen Istamic Active ARocation Plag - VIE
Al-Ameen Islamic Soverign Fund - 24,078,149 13,351,147 10,727,002 1,082,181 1,081,942 (239) 48.08% 48.45%
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 16,960,082 16,960,082 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Al-Anoon Tslsmic Dedicated Bquity Fund - 12,264,750 3,656,117 8,608,673 1,227,149 1,151,172 (15.977) 51.15% 51.55%
Total Jusne 30, 2017 - 53,303,021 33,967,346 19,335,675 2,309,330 2,233,114 {76,216) 99.23% 100%
Al-Amwen Islante Active Allocation Plan - VIIT
Al-Ameen Islantic Soverign Fund - 55,343,401 23,320,798 32,022,603 3,230,562 3,229,848 (714} 65% 85%
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund - 59,114,297 59,114,297 - - - - - 0%
Al-Ameen Tslamic Dedicated Equity Fund - 18,737,058 5,492,116 13,244,942 1,955,542 1,771,143 (184,397} 35% 35%
Tatal Juue 30, 2017 - 133,194,756 87,927,211 45,267,545 5,186,104 5,000,093 (185,111} 100.12% 100%
Total investments in units of mateal funds
Al-Ameen Islamic Soverign Fund - 79,421,550 36,671,945 42,749,605 4,312,743 4,311,789 {953} &0% H0%
Al-Ameen Islansic Cash Fund - 76,074,379 074,379 - - - - - W%
Al-Ameen Islamic Dedicated Squity Fund - 31,001,848 $,148233 21,853,615 3,182,692 2,822,318 (260,374} 40% 40%
186,497,777 121,894,557 64,603,220 7,495,435 7,234,107 (261,328) 99.84% 100%
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10.2

2017
Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Islamic Active

Allocation Plan | Allocation Plan Total
Vil VI
Note (Rupees in '000)
PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Profit receivable on profit and loss sharing
accounts 177 354 531
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 473 - 473
Other receivables - 1,043 1,043
473 1,043 1,516
PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND
FLOATATION COSTS
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 4,286 - 4,286
Amortisation during the period (763) - (763)
Balance as at June 30, 2017 3,523 - 3,523

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement
of operations of the Fund and are being amortised over a period of two years commencing from
February 21, 2017 as per the requirements set out in the Trust Deed.

PAYABLE TO UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration payable 10.1 - - -
Formation cost payable 4,286 - 4,286
Sales load payable 288 10,568 10,856
Shariah Advisor fee payable 10.2 28 28 56
Conversion charges payable - 2 2
Allocated expenses payable 10.3 393 445 838
4,995 11,043 16,038

As per the requirements of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company shall not charge any
fee if the fund makes investment in the CIS managed by the same Management Company. During the
period, the Fund has invested in the units of the CIS managed by the same Management Company
and, accordingly, it has not charged any amount on account of remuneration to Management
Company.

As per NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to charge Shariah Advisory fee
from the Fund. Accordingly, the Management Company has charged Rs. 0.141 million as Shariah
Advisory fee to Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII and Al-Ameen Islamic Active
Allocation Plan - VIII respectively under a contract signed with the Shariah Advisors.
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11

12

13

As per regulation 60(3)(s) of NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are
chargeable to the scheme, maximum up to 0.1% of the average annual net assets or the actual cost
whichever is lower. Accordingly the Management Company has charged 0.1% of the average annual
net assets being the lower.

2017
Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Islamic Active
Allocation Plan | Allocation Plan Total
Vil VI
(Rupees in '000)
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE
Trustee fee payable 184 376 560

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for the services rendered to the Fund under the
provisions of the Trust Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff structure specified therein,
based on the daily net asset value of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Trustee monthly in
arrears.

As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund in respect
of the Trustee fee during the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Up to Rs.1,000 million 0.10% p.a. of Net Assets
Over Rs. 1,000 million Rs. 1.0 million plus 0.075% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.
1,000 million

PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Annual fee payable 624 334 958

Under the provisions of NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme classified as fund of
funds scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075 percent of the
average annual net assets of the Fund.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors remuneration payable 84 84 168
Sales load payable to

Standard Chartered Bank Limited 20,899 5,038 25,937
Provision for Sindh Workers'

Welfare Fund 13.1 - - -
Other payables - 1,043 1,043

20,983 6,165 27,148
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Provision For Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
(SWWF) was introduced by the Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act,
2014 (SWWF Act, 2014). SWWF Act 2014, enacted on May 21, 2015, requires every Industrial
Establishment located in the province of Sindh and having total income of Rs.500,000 or more in any
year of account commencing on or after the date of closing of account on or after December 31,
2013, to pay two percent of so much of its total income declared to SWWF. The said Act includes
any concern engaged in the Banking or Financial Institution in the definition of “Industrial
Undertaking” but does not define Financial Institution. The Management Company, based on an
opinion obtained by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), believes that Mutual
Funds are not liable to pay SWWF under the said law, for the reason that the Mutual Funds are not
financial institutions and rather an investment vehicle. However, the Sindh Revenue Board has not
accepted the said position of MUFAP and as a result, MUFAP has taken up this matter with the
Sindh Finance Ministry for resolution.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on Mutual Funds, the
MUFAP obtained a legal opinion and based on such legal advice, has recommended to all its
members on January 12, 2017 that provision against SWWF, on prudent basis, should be made from
the date of enactment of the SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. May 21, 2015) with effect from January 12,
2017.

The above decision was communicated to SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on
January 12, 2017. In response to the aforementioned letter SECP vide its letter dated February 1,
2017 advised MUFARP that the adjustments relating to the above should be made prospectively and
adequate disclosure shall be made.

Nevertheless, Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan VII and Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation
Plan VIII were launched during the period, and both plans have incurred losses during the period,
therefore, no provision of SWWF has been made in these financial statements.

2017

Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Islamic Active

Allocation Plan | Allocation Plan Total
Vil VI
(Rupees in '000)
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE
Total units in issue at the beginning
of the period - - -
Add: Units issued 23,199,385 51,986,312 75,185,697
Less: Units redeemed (256,018) (422,125) (678,143)
Total units in issue at the end of the period 22,943,367 51,564,187 74,507,554
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2017

Al-Ameen Al-Ameen
Islamic Active Islamic Active

Allocation Plan | Allocation Plan Total
ViI VI
(Rupees in '000)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 63 63 125

Code of Corporate Governance 8 8 15

Fee for other certifications / services 8 8 15

Out of pocket expenses and sales tax 7 7 13

84 84 168

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of Part I of the Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the
unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax)
under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Both the
plans in the Fund have incurred net losses during the period, therefore, no dividend has been
distributed.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company,
determination of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

COMMITTED CREDIT LINES

As per the requirement of Direction No. 7 of 2017 dated March 3, 2017 issued as an amendment to
Direction No. 2 of 2017, the Fund is required to maintain committed credit lines equal to 10% of net
assets. The net assets of the Fund (Plan VII and VIII) amount to Rs. 7,245.41 million as at June 30.
2017 against which the Fund is required to maintain committed credit lines equal to Rs. 724.5
million. However, the committed credit obtained from Bank Islami Pakistan Limited has been capped
at the maximum exposure of Rs. 346 million creating a shortfall of approximately Rs. 378.5 million
with respect to committed credit lines. Management is in the process of obtaining the required level
of committed credit lines to meet the current shortfall.
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TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

As per Directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by SECP, the Total Expense Ratio of Al-
Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII and Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII is
0.15% and 0.03%, respectively, as on June 30, 2017 and this includes 0.03% and 0.01% representing
SECP fee.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at June 30, 2017, the financial assets carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are
categorised either as 'Loans and receivables' or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available for sale. The financial liabilities carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are
categorised as other financial liabilities i.e. liabilities other than 'at fair value through profit or loss'.

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII

As at June 38, 2017

= < 5
Particulars Loans snd Financial assets 'at Financisl assets

receivables fair value through ‘available for sale’ Total
profit or loss’
Rupees in ‘000
Financial assets
Bank balances 35,968 - - 39,968
Investments - 2,233,114 - 2,233,114
Profit receivable 177 - - 177
40,145 2.233.114 - 2,273,259
As at June 30, 2017
Financial Habilities <
Farticulars *at fair value through Oth‘er f'i.ntmual Total
profit or loss' libilities
Rupees in ‘600
Finanecial Habilitics
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company - 4,995 4,995
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 163 163
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 20,983 20,983
- 26,141 26,141
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIIE
As at June 30, 2017
Particulars Loans and Fxfmncxal assets 'at Financial assets
s fair value through . Total
receivables tavailable for sale’
profit or loss'
Rupees in 000
Financial assets
Bank balances 10,471 - - 10,471
Investments - 5,000,993 - 5,000,993
Profit receivable 354 - - 354
Other receivables 1,043 - - 1,043
11,868 5,000,993 - 5,012,861
As at June 30, 2017
Particulars . Fxm.mcml liabilities Other financial
at fair value through ey arels Total
Habilities
profit or logs'
Rupees in ‘000
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company - 11,043 11,043
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 333 333
Accrued expenses and other libilities - 6,165 6,165
- 17,541 17,541
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21 BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND
MANAGER
Details of the members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:
S. No. |Name Designation Experience in Qualification
years
1 Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 16 MBA
2 Syed Suleman Akhter Chief Investment Officer 18 MBA, CFA
3 Farhan Bashir Khan Head of Research 11 MBA
4 Shabbir Sardar Zaidi Fund Manager 8 CFA
Shabbir Sardar Zaidi is the Fund Manager of the Fund. He is also the Fund Manager of UBL Gold
Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic
Dedicated Equity Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Planning Fund and Al-Ameen Islamic
Retirement Savings Fund.
22 PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII
Category Number of unit | Number of units | Percentage of
holders held units held
Individuals 1,249 16,251,965 70.84%
Associated Companies and Directors 1 35,000 0.15%
Retirement Funds 26 2,793,176 12.17%
Public Limited Companies 5 1,529,522 6.67%
Others 16 2,333,704 10.17%
1,297 22,943,367 100.00%
2017
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII
Category Number of unit | Number of units | Percentage of
holders held units held
Individuals 2,715 44,707,678 86.70%
Associated Companies and Directors 1 97,562 0.19%
Insurance Companies 1 60,000 0.12%
Retirement Funds 17 1,309,155 2.54%
Public Limited Companies 20 5,077,153 9.85%
Others 10 312,639 0.61%
2,764 51,564,187 100.00%
23 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of
Management Company), UBL Fund Managers Limited (Management Company), Al-Ameen Islamic
Financial Services Limited (Subsidiary of the Management Company), entities under common
management or directorships, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee) and the
Directors and Officers of Management Company.

135



Remuneration to the Management Company and the trustee is determined in accordance with the
provision of NBFC Rules, NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Other transactions with the related parties / connected persons have been carried out at agreed /
commercial terms. Details of transaction with the related parties and balances with them at the year
end are as follows:

Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII

. . A ccnntatad Funds under . Other Connected
£ Directors and
P ¥ s N Trustee Common Key Executives persons / ‘related
N B Management parties
(Rupees in '000)
Transactions during the period
ended June 36, 2017
Profit on profit and loss sharing account - 273 - - - -
Units {ssued - 3,500 - - - 50,000
Purchase of securities - - - 5,975,152 - -
Sale of securities - - - 3,663,333 - -
Dividend received - - - 37,478 - -
Sharizh advisory fees paid 85 - - - - -
Sales load paid 36,007 - - - - -
Remuneration - - 806 - - -

Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIIT

e A cnrintad Funds under Di Other Connected
irectors and
P c N Trustee Common Key Executives persons / related
N * Mansgement parties
(Rapees in "000)
Transactions during the period
ended June 38, 2017
Profit on profit and loss sharing account - 1,990 - - - -
Units issued - - - - 9,756 -
Purchase of securities - - - 14,544,373 - -
Sale of securities - - - 9,323,162 - -
Dividend received - - - 57,662 - -
Sales load paid 29,049 107,126 - - - -
Remuneration - - 402 - - -

Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIE

A " A cenniatad Funds under . Other Connected
Directors and
s P Trustee Common Key Executives persons / related
N N Management parties
(Rupees in '000)
Balances held as at June 30, 2017
Units held (in Units '000) - 35 - - - 492
Units held (in Rupees '000) - 3,433 - - - 48,229
Bank balances - 39,968 - - - .
Remuneration payable - - 184 - - -
Other payables 4,995 - - . . .
Profit receivable - 177 - - - -

Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII

Management Associated Funds under Directors and Other Connected
N Trusiee Common . persons / related
C Ci Key Executives
-+ = Management parties
(Rupees in *000)
Balances held as at June 30, 2017

Units held (in Units '000) - - - - 98 -
Units held (in Rupees '000) - - - - 9,451 -
Bank balances - 10,471 - - - -
Remuneration payable - - 376 - - -
Other payables 11,043 - - - . -
Profit receivable - 354 - - - -
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24 ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held. The
details of the attendance are as under:

Total

. August 25, | October 28,] December | Februa March 206, | April 11, .

Particulars 2016 2016 | 62016 | 13, 2016 | 2017 So7 | | meetings
attended

Name of Directors:
Tariq Kirmani v v v v v v 6
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v 6
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi v v v v v v 6
Zia jaz v x v % x x 2
Syed Furrukh Zaeem 4 v v v 4 v 6
Zulfigar Alavi v v v v X v 5
Sadeed Barlas v v v % v v 5
Name of Key Executives:
Hasnain R Nensey * v v v * - - 3
Umair Ahmed ¥ v v v v v 6
Fawaz Siddiqui v v v v v v 6

* Resigned on Feb 28, 2017

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Plans under the Fund primarily invest in shariah compliant equity, income and money market
schemes within the prescribed limits. The investment activities expose the Fund to a variety of
financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

251 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by
following the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the

Investment Committee and the regulations laid down by the SECP.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
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25.1.2

b)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Fund has no exposure to foreign exchange risk as at June 30, 2017, as the fund has no financial
assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Fund's interest rate risk arises from balances in saving accounts. The net income for the period
would have increased by Rs. 0.050 million, Rs. 0.362 million in Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation
Plan - VII, Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII, respectively, had the interest rates on
savings accounts with bank increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

Fair value interest rate risk

Since the Fund currently does not have any fixed rate instruments that are impacted by market
interest rates, therefore, it is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII

June 30, 2017
Exposed to interest rate risk
Particulars Effecﬁve yield / Total Upto three thl\:le:r;'::t:s More than |, Not exposed to
interest rate interest rate risk/
months and upto one one year
vear
%  —— (Rupees i "000) e

On-halance sheet financial instruments
Finsncial assets

Bank balances 5.5 39,968 39,968 - - -

Investments 2,233,114 - - 2,233,114

Profit receivable 177 - - - 177
Sub total 2,273,259 39,968 - - 2,233,291
Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 4,995 - - - 4,995

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 163 B B B 163

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 20,983 - - - 20,983
Sub total 26,141 - - - 26,141
On-balance sheet gap (a) 2,247,118 39,968 . . 2,207,150
Off-balance sheet financial instrument - - ~
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - . . -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) 147,118 39,908 N N 220,00
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 30,968
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25.2

Al-Ameen [slamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII

June 36, 2017
Exposed to interest rate risk
" P More than
Particulars Effechve vield/ Total Upto three three months More tham |, Not exposed to
interest rate interest rate risk
months and apto ene one year
year
Yo e e {UPELE I GO e
On-balance sheet fnancial iustruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 55 10,471 10,471 - -
Investments 5,000,993 - - 5,000,993
Profit receivable 354 - 354
Other receivable 1,043 - - 1,043
Sub total 5,012,861 10,471 - 5,002,390
Financial Habilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 11,043 - 11,043
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 333 - 333
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,165 - 6,163
Sub total 17,541 - - 17,541
On-balance sheet gap (2) 7595520 T0A7T - 584,849
Off-batance sheet financial instrument - z ~ Z
Off-balsnce sheet gap (b) - - - -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) 4995 320 10471 - 4 O%.849
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 10471 -

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk)
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund's exposure to price risk is limited to the fair value of the respective funds in which it
invests. The Fund manages its exposure to price risk by investing in Shariah Compliant Mutual Funds
as per the respective Allocation Plan in line with the risk tolerance of the investor and benchmarking
the sector weighting to that of average daily return of KMI 30 index and 6 months deposit rate of
AA- rated (and above) Islamic Banks, based on actual proportion of investment in Equity and
Income/ Money Market.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such
obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to non-payment of redemptions request on a regular basis. Units are redeemable
at the holder’s option based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit at the time of redemption
calculated in accordance with the Fund’s constitutive document and guidelines laid down by the
SECP.
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Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments that are
traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.

The Fund can borrow, with the prior approval of the trustee, for meeting redemption requests. The
maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of total
assets at the time of borrowing with repayment within 90 days of such borrowings. No such

borrowings were made during the year.

The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VII

June 30, 2017

Particulars More than three
Upto three months | months and upto Over one year Total
one year
______________ ~— Rupees in ‘000
Financial labilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 4,995 - - 4,995
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 163 - - 163
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 20,983 - - 20,983
Total liabilities 26,141 - - 26,141
Al-Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIIX
June 30, 2017
. ) More than three
Particulars Upto three months | months and upto Over one year Total
one year
Rupees in ‘000
Financial Habilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 11,043 - - 11,043
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 333 - - 333
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,165 - - 6,165
Total liabilities 17,541 - - 17,541
Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's
credit risk mainly arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure
arising as a result of dividend receivable on units of mutual funds.
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Management of eredit risk

For banks and financial institutions, the Fund keeps deposits with reputed institutions. Credit risk on
account of dividend receivable is minimal due to the statutory protections. Further, all transactions in
the Fund are executed only in underlying funds, thus the risk of default is considered to be minimal.
The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of the NBFC Rules and
the Regulations and the guidelines given by the SECP from time to time.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2017 is tabulated below:

Al-Ameen Islamic | Al-Ameen Islamic
Financial Asset Active Allocation | Active Allocation Total
Plan - VII Plan - VI

Rupees in '000'

Balances with banks 39,968 16,471 50,439
Investments 2,233,114 5,000,993 7,234,107
Profit receivable 177 354 531
Other receivable - 1,043 1,043

2,273,259 5,012,861 7,286,120

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Bank with which the Fund's financial assets
are kept in profit and loss accounts as at June 30, 2017:

Al Ameen Islamic | Al Ameen Islamic | Latest available
Particulars Rating agency | Active Allocation | Active Allocation | published rating as
Plan- VI Plan - VI at June 30, 2017

Rupees in "000

United Bank Limited JCR-VIS 40,145 10,825 AAA
40,145 10,825

Concentration on credit risk

Concentration of risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into the
same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions.

The Fund's bank balances are held with a single bank (related party). The management believes that
the Bank is a reputed institution.
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UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units.
The amount of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Fund is subject to daily issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. The Fund’s
objective when managing the unit holders' fund is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for the benefits of the unit holders to maintain a strong base
of assets to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund and to meet unexpected
losses or opportunities. As required under the NBFC Regulations, every open end scheme shall
maintain minimum fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the life
of scheme. In order to comply with the requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund,
the Fund’s policy is to perform the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts
the amount of distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund, which
include the ability to restrict redemptions and require certain minimum holdings and
issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer
critically track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is
updated regarding key performance indicators e.g. yield and movement of NAV and total
Fund size at the end of each quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the
current period.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or liability can be settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise
between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on
the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered
not significantly different from the carrying value as the items are short-term in nature or periodically
repriced.
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As per the requirements of the IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures) and IFRS 13 (Fair Value
Measurement), the Fund shall classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level3: Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs)

Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VI

June 30, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
---------------- RS in "G00 -mrmrmmermmrmrmrmmemne
Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss - held for trading 2,233,114 - -
2,233,114 - -
Al Ameen Islamic Active Allocation Plan - VIII
June 30, 2017
Level1 Level 2 Level 3
---------------- 3TN Y LTI S—
Assets
Investment in mutual funds - financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - held for trading 5,000,993 - -

5,000,993 - -

During the period ended June 30, 2017, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value
measurements and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2017.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management
Company on August 23, 2017
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These figures has been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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